
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

      BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

AAuugguusstt  77,,  22002233  
  



 
August 5, 2023  11:44:28 AM 
 

 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
AUGUST 7, 2023 

WASHINGTON COUNTY EARLY COLLEGE HIGH SCHOOL MEDIA CENTER 
115 MIDDLE STREET, CRESWELL, NC 

 
 

 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Walker 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
   Approval of Meeting Agenda 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of Minutes of June 5, 2023 
b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents  
c) Updated Pay Tables Chart Effective 7/16/23 
d) Position Description: Assistant County Manager, Deputy Tax Administrator & Land 

Records Coordinator Positions 
e) Lease of 205 East Main St. to NC Dept. of Adult Correction for Probation Offices 
f) RESO 2023-020 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $970,200 
g) RESO 2023-021 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $5,472,000 
h) Order for Collection of Ad Valorem Taxes 
i) Approval of Retention Schedule 
j) Approval of 2023 Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement with Emergency Management 

 
Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3-5 minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 3 6:20 PM Tax Collector’s Report in Settlement, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
Item 4 6:30 PM Late Application for Disabled Veterans Exemption, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
Item 5 6:40 PM Department Information Update:  Planning/Inspections Department 
 
Item 6 7:00 PM Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing—Special Use Permit:  Mr. Allen Pittman, Planning/Inspections 
  
Item 7 7:45 PM Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
   
Item 8 7:50 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy 

Dixon, Finance Officer 
 
 
 



 
August 5, 2023  11:44:28 AM 
 

 
 

Item 9 8:00 PM  Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 
a) NCACC Voting Delegate Designation 
b) ABC 2023-2024 Proposed Annual Operating Budget 
c) Discussion:  Agenda for Joint Meeting with the Plymouth Town Council 
d) Discussion:  Legislation on Allowance of Heavier Trucks 
e) Discussion:  ¼ cent Sales Tax Referendum 

 
Item 10  8:15 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  

(attorney-client privilege and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 
 

Recess/Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  August 7, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Approval of Minutes of June 5, 2023 (see attached at the end of the package) 
 

b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents (see attached)  
 

c) Updated Pay Tables Chart Effective 7/16/23 
 

d) Position Description: Assistant County Manager, Deputy Tax Administrator & Land 
Records Coordinator Positions (see attached) 

 
e) Lease of 205 East Main St. to NC Dept. of Adult Correction for Probation Offices (see 

attached) 
 

f) RESO 2023-020 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $970,200 (see attached) 
 

g) RESO 2023-021 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $5,472,000 (see attached) 
 

h) Order for Collection of Ad Valorem Taxes (see attached) 
Each year, the Tax Administrator is required to ask the Board’s approval of her Order for 
Collection of Ad Valorem Taxes. 
 

i) Approval of Retention Schedule (see attached) 
The County Manager Office Assistant is responsible for keeping up with Retention 
Schedules and this document (in laymen’s terms) says the County will follow the statutes 
for retention of records. 

 
j) Approval of 2023 Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement with Emergency Management (see 

attached) 
 

 
 





















Grade Position Title #POS Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10 Step 11 Step 12 Step 13 Step 14 Step 15 Step 16 Step 17
Years of Relevant Experience (YORE) Ind 45 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7&8 9&10 11&12 13&14 15&16 17&18 19&20 21&22 23&24 25&26

Office Assistant/Floater PT
Housekeeper 2
Veteran's Service Officer PT
Maintenance Worker I 2
Senior Center Nutrition Prog. Mgr. 1
Utility Customer Service Rep 2
Accounting Technician 1
Asst Register of Deeds 1
Landfill Operator 1
Property Tax Clerk 2
Waterworks Techanician I 4
Administrative Asst 2
Maintenance Worker II 1
Water Treatment Plant Operator 0
Code Enforement Officer 1

16 Chief Landfill Operator 1 $31,009 $31,795 $32,569 $33,397 $34,209 $35,075 $35,928 $36,846 $37,763 $38,721 $39,692 $40,649 $41,698 $42,696 $43,798 $44,874 $45,996
Airport Manager 1
Recreation Director 1
Soil and Water Supervisor 1
Accounting/HR Specialist 1
Assistant Tax Assessor 1
Delinquent Tax Coordinator 1
Senior Center Director 1
Clerk to Board/Admin. Asst. 1
Elections Director (FN1) 1
Senior Project Manager 2
Tax Land Records Coord 1
- 0
IT Systems Operator 1
Deputy Tax Administrator 1
Maintenance Supervisor 1
Water Treatment Plant Supervisor 1
Deputy Finance Officer/Financial Analys 1
Grants & Procurement Manager 1
Register of Deeds (FN2) 1
Tax Administrator 1

39 Utilities Director 1 $54,895 $56,232 $57,663 $59,105 $60,587 $62,082 $63,617 $65,218 $66,844 $68,536 $70,242 $72,012 $73,782 $75,632 $77,521 $79,449 $81,435
40 Planning Dir./Bldg Insp (Dual Role) 1 $55,944 $57,348 $58,750 $60,246 $61,728 $63,250 $64,824 $66,477 $68,129 $69,821 $71,566 $73,363 $75,186 $77,049 $79,266 $80,971 $82,995

Finance Officer 1
Assistant County Manager 1
FN1: Elections Director & Employee Compensation Subject to NCGS 163-37
FN2: Sheriff&ROD Compensation Subject to NCGS 153A-92
FN3: Time spent in uncertified positions is not counted for YORE purposes in a higher pay grade/range position resulting from obtaining certification
FY23 Note: Actual compensation amounts for NCSU Coop Extension Staff should be monitored to insure equitable progression compared to regular county staff
Recent COLAs: [2% 2013];     [2% 2015];     [2% 2018];     [2.5% 7.16.22];     [2.5% 7.16.23]

$33,029$32,241 $36,479$35,587$34,694$33,855 $38,291$37,357

$50,434 $51,681 $52,980 $54,291 $55,643 $57,033 $58,462 $59,906 $61,403

Revised/Effective: 7/16/2023

44

$55,210 $56,587 $57,991

$58,397

26 $41,410 $42,421 $43,457 $44,597 $45,686 $46,814 $47,995 $49,188

$60,509 $62,044 $63,578 $65,178 $66,805

$59,446 $60,942 $62,450 $64,011 $65,624 $67,263$51,275 $52,572 $53,884

$79,409 $81,391 $83,437 $85,509 $87,674 $89,866$68,470 $70,175 $71,959 $73,744 $75,579 $77,469

10 $24,791 $25,395 $26,025 $26,693 $27,336 $28,045 $33,304

$68,943 $70,322

25

32 $47,601 $48,809 $50,015

$47,969 $49,137 $50,356 $51,628

27 $42,421 $43,457 $44,611 $45,686 $46,814 $48,008 $49,188

$53,911 $55,259$42,131 $43,182 $44,244 $45,345 $46,513 $47,654

$40,387 $41,384 $42,394 $43,430 $44,559 $45,660 $46,749

$48,835 $50,041

$59,857$52,940 $54,252 $55,616 $57,007

22 $37,252 $38,210 $39,115 $40,086 $41,057 $51,313 $52,586

$45,175 $46,329$38,984 $39,955 $40,939 $41,935 $43,024 $44,086

$50,894$38,839 $39,783 $40,781 $48,428 $49,661 $52,167

21 $36,176 $37,095 $38,039

$41,778 $42,814 $43,890 $44,978 $46,106 $47,260

$52,402 $53,712$47,445 $48,204 $49,871 $51,117

20 $35,154 $36,033 $36,924 $37,843

$44,755 $45,844 $47,025 $48,192 $49,372 $50,607$38,564 $39,600 $40,558 $41,555 $42,578 $43,68019 $34,143 $34,984 $35,836 $36,741 $37,633

$41,318 $42,341$35,639 $36,531 $37,423 $38,367 $39,299 $40,269 $47,903 $49,101$43,378 $44,454 $45,608 $46,684

17 $32,032 $32,845 $33,672

18 $33,081 $33,933 $34,760

$38,078 $39,037 $40,006 $40,990$34,498 $35,364 $36,256 $37,160 $44,139 $45,240 $47,528

$39,272 $40,269 $41,318 $42,329 $43,365

$46,369$42,026 $43,102

$44,44915 $29,985 $30,707 $31,480 $32,281 $33,069
$36,085 $37,017$31,127 $31,913 $32,714 $33,540 $34,380 $35,219

$33,908 $34,760 $35,626 $36,518 $37,410 $38,341
$41,856 $42,902$37,948 $38,892 $39,863 $40,859

13 $27,873 $28,582 $29,277

14 $28,949 $29,645 $30,418

$33,160 $33,973 $34,852 $35,692$30,038 $30,773 $31,547 $32,360

$30,406 $31,114 $31,901 $32,701 $33,514 $34,341

$38,419 $39,351 $41,411

$35,193 $36,071 $36,990 $37,908 $38,879

$40,401$36,584 $37,488

$39,851

8

12 $26,838 $27,545 $28,215 $28,936 $29,632

$27,795 $28,503$27,139$25,815 $26,471

$26,982 $27,650 $28,320 $29,041 $29,737 $30,523

$34,143 $34,996 $35,862$29,461 $30,169 $30,944 $31,704 $32,478

$29,199 $29,946 $30,654 $31,429

$36,759$28,726

FY24 Washington County 

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (County - Non 1st Responders & Non-DSS)

$62,949$50,434 $51,681 $52,980 $54,291 $55,655 $57,045 $58,462 $59,918 $61,413

$22,693 $23,257 $23,847 $24,450 $25,027 $25,697 $26,313 $31,271 $32,018 $32,845 $33,666

11



Grade Position Title #POS Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10 Step 11 Step 12 Step 13 Step 14 Step 15 Step 16 Step 17
Years of Relevant Experience (YORE) Ind 69 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7&8 9&10 11&12 13&14 15&16 17&18 19&20 21&22 23&24 25&26

EMT Basic 10
Telecommunicator I - Uncert (FN3) 2

12 WCSO Animal Control Officer 1 $26,838 $27,545 $28,215 $28,936 $29,632 $30,406 $31,114 $31,901 $32,701 $33,514 $34,341 $35,193 $36,071 $36,990 $37,908 $38,879 $39,851
WCSO Admin Asst 1
EMT Intermediate 3
Telecommunicator II - EMD Cert 7

15 Detention Officer 8 $29,985 $30,707 $31,480 $32,281 $33,069 $33,908 $34,760 $35,626 $36,518 $37,410 $38,341 $39,272 $40,269 $41,318 $42,329 $43,365 $44,449
16 Detention Corporal 3 $31,009 $31,795 $32,569 $33,397 $34,209 $35,075 $35,928 $36,846 $37,763 $38,721 $39,692 $40,649 $41,698 $42,696 $43,798 $44,874 $45,996
18 Detention - Lieutenant 1 $33,081 $33,933 $34,760 $35,639 $36,531 $37,423 $38,367 $39,299 $40,269 $41,318 $42,341 $43,378 $44,454 $45,608 $46,684 $47,903 $49,101
19 EMT Paramedics 9 $34,143 $34,984 $35,836 $36,741 $37,633 $38,564 $39,600 $40,558 $41,555 $42,578 $43,680 $44,755 $45,844 $47,025 $48,192 $49,372 $50,607
21 911 Telecom Supervisor - EMD Cert 1 $36,176 $37,095 $38,039 $38,984 $39,955 $40,939 $41,935 $43,024 $44,086 $45,175 $46,329 $47,445 $48,204 $49,871 $51,117 $52,402 $53,712
23 Chief Detention Officer 1 $38,289 $39,220 $40,191 $41,253 $42,263 $43,286 $44,362 $45,477 $46,617 $47,798 $48,965 $50,199 $51,445 $52,730 $54,056 $55,393 $56,778
26 WCSO Deputy 8 $41,410 $42,421 $43,457 $44,597 $45,686 $46,814 $47,995 $49,188 $50,434 $51,681 $52,980 $54,291 $55,643 $57,033 $58,462 $59,906 $61,403
27 WCSO Corporal 2 $42,421 $43,457 $44,611 $45,686 $46,814 $48,008 $49,188 $50,434 $51,681 $52,980 $54,291 $55,655 $57,045 $58,462 $59,918 $61,413 $62,949
28 WCSO Sergeant 2 $43,443 $44,584 $45,673 $46,775 $47,981 $49,175 $50,422 $51,668 $52,967 $54,278 $55,629 $57,020 $58,422 $59,892 $61,388 $62,909 $64,482
29 WCSO Investigator 3 $44,519 $45,634 $46,736 $47,929 $49,123 $50,343 $51,615 $52,900 $54,212 $55,576 $56,967 $58,370 $59,839 $61,321 $62,843 $66,084 $67,736

Emergency Mgmt Coord 1
WCSO Lieutenant 2

32 EMS Deputy Director 1 $47,601 $48,809 $50,015 $51,275 $52,572 $53,884 $55,210 $56,587 $57,991 $59,446 $60,942 $62,450 $64,011 $65,624 $67,263 $68,943 $70,322
36 WCSO Chief Deputy 1 $51,773 $53,072 $54,396 $55,747 $57,138 $58,567 $60,010 $61,493 $63,066 $64,640 $66,227 $67,894 $69,611 $71,330 $73,126 $74,963 $76,837
37 EMS Director 1 $52,795 $54,134 $55,498 $56,888 $58,292 $59,761 $61,230 $62,752 $64,339 $65,926 $67,591 $69,258 $71,015 $72,760 $74,583 $76,458 $78,370
45 WCSO Sheriff (FN2) 1 $62,022 $63,595 $65,168 $66,808 $68,475 $70,182 $71,929 $73,758 $75,587 $77,469 $79,405 $81,395 $83,426 $85,523 $87,647 $89,866 $92,112

Refer to FNs on Non-1st Responder Salary Schedule/Pay Tables

Grade Job Title #POS Step 1/A1 Step 2/A2 Step 3/B1 Step 4/B2 Step 5/B3 Step 6/C1 Step 7/C2 Step 8/C3 Step 9/D1 Step 10/D2 Step 11/D3 Step 12/E1 Step 13/E2 Step 14/E3 Step 15/F1 Step 16/F2 Step 17/F3
Years of Relevant Experience (YORE) Index: 59 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7&8 9&10 11&12 13&14 15&16 17&18 19&20 21&22 23&24 25&26

52 Housekeeper  (FN1) 1 $22,693 $23,257 $23,847 $24,450 $25,027 $25,697 $26,313 $26,982 $27,650 $28,320 $29,041 $29,737 $30,523 $31,271 $32,018 $32,845 $33,666
Processing Assistant V 2
IM CW I 0
Vehicle Operator I 5
Transportation Coordinator 1
IM Caseworker II (FN2) 14
Info Processing Tech 2
Social Worker I 0
CS Enforcement Agent II 4
IM Investigator II (FN2) 1
IM Caseworker III (FN2) 4
CS Supervisor I 1
IM Supervisor II 2
Paralegal I 1
Transit Supervisor 1
Social Worker II (FN3) 5

69 Social Worker III (FN3) 5 $39,049 $40,020 $40,977 $41,948 $42,972 $44,073 $45,175 $46,421 $47,523 $48,612 $49,871 $51,104 $52,429 $53,661 $55,078 $56,402 $57,872
Social Worker Inv/Ass/Tr (FN3) 3
Social Worker Supervisor II 1
Computer System Administrator I 1

73 Social Worker Supervisor III 3 $47,523 $48,612 $49,871 $51,104 $52,429 $53,661 $55,078 $56,402 $57,872 $59,341 $60,823 $62,332 $63,879 $65,453 $67,120 $68,733 $70,438
75 Social Services Deputy Director 1 $52,429 $53,661 $55,078 $56,402 $57,872 $59,341 $60,823 $62,332 $63,879 $65,453 $67,120 $68,733 $70,438 $72,248 $74,072 $75,894 $77,784
81 Social Services Director 1 $70,342 $72,032 $73,818 $75,716 $77,627 $79,537 $81,517 $83,565 $85,641 $87,772 $89,970 $92,211 $94,507 $96,885 $99,305 $101,765 $104,281

FN1: DSS Housekeeper step values are based on and pasted into the schedule from the non-DSS salary schedule's values for non-DSS housekeepers to create equity between all housekeeper positions
FN2: YORE value subject to work against reduction (refer to Supplemental DSS YORE Guidelines v20201216)
FN3: Subject to YORE reductions for Work Against/Prior Experience (refer to Supplemental DSS YORE Guidelines v20201216)
CS = Child Support
IM = Income Maintenance

$38,419 $39,351 $40,401 $41,411$33,973

Revised/Effective: 7/16/2023

Revised/Effective: 7/16/2023

$56,705 $58,161 $59,591 $61,085 $62,620 $64,181 $65,781 $67,421 $69,10731 $46,579 $47,746 $48,927 $50,146 $51,405 $52,704 $54,003 $55,340

$35,692 $36,584 $37,488

FY24 Washington County 

$35,587 $36,479 $37,357

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (First Responders Only)

$26,471 $27,139 $27,795 $38,291$33,029 $33,855 $34,694$25,815

$34,85213 $27,873 $28,582 $29,277 $30,038

$28,503 $29,199 $29,946 $30,654 $31,429 $32,241

$30,773 $31,547 $32,360 $33,160

11

$52,429 $53,661 $55,078 $56,402 $57,872 $59,341$45,175 $46,421 $47,523 $48,612 $49,871 $51,10470 $40,977 $41,948 $42,972 $44,073

$47,523 $48,612 $49,871 $51,104 $52,429

$60,823

$40,977 $41,948 $42,972 $44,073 $45,175 $46,421

$47,523$41,948 $42,972 $44,073 $45,175 $46,421

67 $35,442 $36,295 $37,160 $38,091 $39,049 $40,020

$40,977$35,442 $36,295 $37,160 $38,091 $39,049 $40,02065 $32,071 $32,859 $33,698 $34,524

$27,717

$39,049 $40,020 $40,977 $41,948 $42,972$33,698 $34,524 $35,442 $36,295 $37,160 $38,091

$39,049$34,524 $35,442 $36,295 $37,160 $38,091

63 $29,120 $29,815 $30,563 $31,297 $32,071 $32,859

$33,698$29,120 $29,815 $30,563 $31,297 $32,071 $32,859$28,425$26,391 $27,074

FY24 Washington County 

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (DSS) - Revised/Effective: 1/16/23

61



Washington County Posi�on Descrip�on  
Assistant County Manager v20230701 Page 1 of 3 

WASHINGTON COUNTY  

POSITION DESCRIPTION  
v20230701 

 

 

 
POSITION TITLE ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 
POSITION TYPE FULL TIME/EXEMPT 
POSITION LOCATION COUNTY MANAGER’S OFFICE – PLYMOUTH (NC) 

 

GENERAL POSITION STATEMENT 
 

Under limited supervision, performs responsible administrative and managerial work overseeing assigned programs and 
assisting the County Manager in overall administration of County government. Work involves supervising activities of assigned 
county department managers as well as overseeing assigned county projects. Performs various administrative duties and/or 
conducts research and studies at the request of the County Manager and assists County departments. Supervises department 
employees which involves such duties as instructing, assigning and reviewing work, maintaining standards, acting on 
employee problems, selecting new employees, appraising employee performance, recommending promotions and/or 
disciplinary action as warranted. May assume the duties and responsibilities of the County Manager in their absence.  
Exercises considerable initiative and independent judgment in all phases of work. Must exercise considerable tact and courtesy 
in frequent contact with County employees, service vendors, and the general public. Reports to the County Manager. 

 

SPECIFIC DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 

- Assists the County Manager in development of policies and procedures pertaining to personnel, capital improvement, 
fiscal control, construction projects and public relations issues; serves as member of County Manager's management 
team, participating in meetings and discussions to formulate and develop planning on various issues pertaining to 
operations of County government. 
 

- Oversees County capital improvement projects, ensuring adherence to specified standards; confers with department 
heads, supervisory boards, County Commissioners, court officials, architects, contractors, etc., to resolve disputes, as 
necessary. 
 

- Oversees, coordinates and administers various personnel programs in accordance with local, state and federal 
ordinances, statutes and laws; develops amendments to local personnel ordinance, as necessary, and presents 
recommendations to County Commissioners. 
 

- Represents the County in official capacities on various regional and County boards and committees. 
 

- Confers with department heads regarding intended discipline of management level and professional level employees, 
advising as necessary; represents interests of County in disputes with employees before oversight agencies such as 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, Employment Security Commission, etc.; investigates complaints made 
by employees, and addresses accordingly. 
 



Washington County Posi�on Descrip�on  
Assistant County Manager v20230701 Page 2 of 3 

- Serves as liaison between County and the general public, investigating and addressing disputes and inquiries, as 
necessary; advises County Manager on matters pertaining to the image of the County and resolves problems on 
behalf of the County Manager and the Board of Commissioners. 
 

- Monitors and reviews activities of department heads, ensuring adherence to established policies, procedures and 
standards; assists and advises subordinates, as necessary, resolving problems as non-routine situations arise. 
 

- Supervises department employees which involves such duties as instructing, assigning and reviewing work, 
maintaining standards, acting on employee problems, selecting new employees, appraising employee performance, 
recommending promotions, discipline, termination and salary increases. 
 

- Performs administrative duties and/or compiles data for special projects or reports as assigned. 
 

- Interacts and communicates with and assists County Manager, Board of Commissioners, department managers, 
executive from outside corporations, and general public, as needed. 
 

- Oversees specific departments and/or programs as delegated or assigned by the County Manager. 
 

- Assumes duties of County Manager in his/her absence, ensuring adherence to established policies, procedures and 
standards. 
 

ADDITIONAL JOB FUNCTIONS 

Performs other related work as required. 

- DISCLAIMER: This position description is not an employment agreement or contract.  Management reserves the 
exclusive right to alter this description at any time without notice. 

 

TRAINING & EXPERIENCE 
 

- Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration/Business/Political Science, or a related field required; considerable 
increasingly responsible experience in the administration and management of local government programs and 
personnel; or any equivalent combination of training and experience which provides the required skills, knowledge 
and abilities to perform the duties assigned to this position. 
 

- Valid North Carolina driver’s license required upon hire and duration of employment. 
 

- Must take and successfully pass a pre-employment drug test, Motor Vehicle Records driver license check, and criminal 
background check. Must submit to random, reasonable suspicion, and post-accident drug and alcohol testing.  In-
county residency within one (1) year of employment is preferred, but not required. 

 

  



Washington County Posi�on Descrip�on  
Assistant County Manager v20230701 Page 3 of 3 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OR STANDARDS REQUIRED 

TO PERFORM CRITICAL/ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
Physical Requirements:  Must be physically able to operate a variety of machinery and equipment including computers, 
typewriters, calculators, copiers, facsimile machines, etc.  Must be physically able to exert a negligible amount of force 
frequently or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull, or otherwise move objects.  Sedentary work involves sitting most of the time, 
but may involve walking or standing for brief periods of time. 

Data Conception:  Requires the ability to compare and or judge the readily observable functional, structural, or compositional 
characteristics (whether similar to or divergent from obvious standards) of data, people, or things. 

Interpersonal Communication:  Requires the ability of speaking and/or signaling people to convey or exchange information. 
Includes giving instructions, assignments and/or directions to subordinates and assistants.  

Language Ability: Requires the ability to read various reports, records, forms, budgets, invoices, legal documents, contracts, 
insurance statements, etc. Requires the ability to prepare reports, correspondence, studies, advertisements, etc., utilizing 
proper formats and conforming to all rules of grammar, diction and style. Requires the ability to speak before groups of people 
with poise, voice control and confidence. 

Intelligence: Requires the ability to apply principles of logical or scientific thinking to define problems, collect data, establish 
facts, and draw valid conclusions; to interpret an extensive variety of technical instructions in mathematical or diagrammatic 
form; deal with several abstract and concrete variables. 

Verbal Aptitude: Requires the ability to record and deliver information and to follow and give verbal and written instructions. 
Must be able to communicate effectively and efficiently in a variety of technical or professional languages including accounting, 
personnel and governmental terminology.  

Numerical Aptitude: Requires the ability to utilize mathematical formulas; adding and subtracting totals; multiplying and 
dividing; determining percentages and decimals. 

Form/Spatial Aptitude: Requires the ability to inspect items for proper length, width and shape, visually with office equipment 
and recording devices. 

Motor Coordination: Requires the ability to coordinate hands and eyes in using automated office equipment to operate motor 
vehicles. 

Manual Dexterity: Requires the ability to handle a variety of items, office equipment, control knobs, switches, etc.  Must have 
minimal levels of eye/hand/foot coordination.  



Washington County Position Advertisement  
Deputy Tax Administrator Position v20230701 Page 1 of 2 

WASHINGTON COUNTY  

POSITION DESCRIPTION 

 

 

 

POSITION TITLE DEPUTY TAX ADMINISTRATOR 

POSITION TYPE FULL TIME/EXEMPT 

POSITION LOCATION COUNTY TAX OFFICE – PLYMOUTH (NC) 

 

GENERAL POSITION STATEMENT 
Assists the Tax Administrator in all matters related to the Tax Department including performing difficult professional and 

administrative work supervising, planning, and directing the listing, valuation, billing and collecting of property taxes.  

Overseeing department operations for efficiency and effectiveness, maintaining records and files, preparing reports.  Does 

related work as required.  Work involves setting policies and goals under the direction of the Tax Administrator.  

Departmental supervision is exercised over all personnel within the department. 

SPECIFIC DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

SPECIFIC JOB FUNCTIONS 

- Plans, directs, and oversees activities of tax listing, appraisal, billing, and collection in the Tax Department 

through direct or delegated supervision.  Ensuring that established policies, procedures, and programs are 

planned and implemented in accordance with state laws and the County Board of Commissioners directives.  

Assists in reviewing, developing, and implementing policies and procedures, as necessary, to improve 

department efficiency.  

- Assigns, directs, trains, and inspects the work of staff.  Assists staff with complex issues.  

- Receives and responds to inquiries and questions in person and via email and telephone.  

- Assists in supervising the listing, discovery and evaluation of real and personal property and public utility taxes, 

as well as processing taxes pertaining to municipalities and drainage districts.  Assists with the preparation of tax 

bills, maintenance of real estate transfers and maintenance and updating of all county tax records.  

- Supervises and participates in the collection of unpaid taxes. 

- Participates in the County-wide revaluation project.  

- Meets with taxpayers, attorneys, and other interested persons with inquiries about property value assessments, 

addresses and seeks to resolve disputes pertaining to property value assessments.  

- Assists with the annual budget proposal, including analyzing past expenditures.  

- Prepares a variety of statistical reports and other reports as directed.  

 

ADDITIONAL JOB FUNCTIONS/SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

- Performs other related work as required. 

- Thorough knowledge of the procedures and policies of the tax department as such pertains to the performance of 

the duties of the position. 

- Requires the ability to perform under stress and deal with others acting under stress.  
- Requires attention to detail, strong math skills, and good verbal and written communication skills as well 

as exceptional customer service skills. 

- Requires strong analytical/critical thinking and problem-solving skills. 

- Position requires maintenance of a high level of confidentiality. 



Washington County Position Advertisement  
Deputy Tax Administrator Position v20230701 Page 2 of 2 

- Must take and successfully pass a pre-employment drug test, Motor Vehicle Records driver license check, and criminal 

background check. Must submit to random, reasonable suspicion, and post-accident drug and alcohol testing.  In-

county residency within one (1) year of employment is preferred, but not required. 

- DISCLAIMER: This position description is not an employment agreement or contract.  Management reserves the 
exclusive right to alter this description at any time without notice. 

 

TRAINING & EXPERIENCE 

- Associates degree in business administration, finance, accounting or related field preferred along with some 

supervisory experience, or any equivalent combination of education and experience.  

- Valid North Carolina driver’s license required upon hire and duration of employment. 

- Completion of NCTCA Deputy Tax Collector certification within 2 years of employment. Completion of N. C. 

Department of Revenue’s and UNC School of Government courses regarding assessment and collection.   

- Must be proficient with and have experience using computers and basic office productivity software (preferably 

Microsoft Office products) as well as experience with basic office machinery (computer, printer, fax, scanner, 10-

key calculator).   

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OR STANDARDS REQUIRED 

TO PERFORM CRITICAL/ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 

Physical Requirements:  Must be physically able to operate a variety of machinery and equipment including computers, 

typewriters, calculators, copiers, facsimile machines, etc.  Must be physically able to exert a negligible amount of force 

frequently or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull, or otherwise move objects.  Sedentary work involves sitting most of the time, 

but may involve walking or standing for brief periods of time. 

Data Conception:  Requires the ability to compare and or judge the readily observable functional, structural, or compositional 

characteristics (whether similar to or divergent from obvious standards) of data, people, or things. 

Interpersonal Communication:  Requires the ability of speaking and/or signaling people to convey or exchange information. 

Includes giving instructions, assignments and/or directions to subordinates and assistants.  

Language Ability: Requires the ability to read various reports, records, forms, budgets, invoices, legal documents, contracts, 

insurance statements, etc. Requires the ability to prepare reports, correspondence, studies, advertisements, etc., utilizing 

proper formats and conforming to all rules of grammar, diction and style. Requires the ability to speak before groups of people 

with poise, voice control and confidence. 

Intelligence: Requires the ability to apply principles of logical or scientific thinking to define problems, collect data, establish 

facts, and draw valid conclusions; to interpret an extensive variety of technical instructions in mathematical or diagrammatic 

form; deal with several abstract and concrete variables. 

Verbal Aptitude: Requires the ability to record and deliver information and to follow and give verbal and written instructions. 

Must be able to communicate effectively and efficiently in a variety of technical or professional languages including accounting, 

personnel and governmental terminology.  

Numerical Aptitude: Requires the ability to utilize mathematical formulas; adding and subtracting totals; multiplying and 

dividing; determining percentages and decimals. 

Form/Spatial Aptitude: Requires the ability to inspect items for proper length, width and shape, visually with office equipment 

and recording devices. 

Motor Coordination: Requires the ability to coordinate hands and eyes in using automated office equipment to operate motor 

vehicles. 

Manual Dexterity: Requires the ability to handle a variety of items, office equipment, control knobs, switches, etc.  Must have 

minimal levels of eye/hand/foot coordination.  

 



Washington County  
Tax Land Records Coordinator Position v20230701 Page 1 of 2 

WASHINGTON COUNTY  

POSITION DESCRIPTION 

 

 

 

POSITION TITLE LAND RECORDS COORDINATOR 

POSITION TYPE FULL TIME/NON-EXEMPT 

POSITION LOCATION COUNTY TAX OFFICE – PLYMOUTH (NC) 

 

GENERAL POSITION STATEMENT 
 

Performs management of the land records of the tax department.  Processing changes in real property records through 

deeds, estate filings and any other means.  Performing statutory audits.  Calculate deferred taxes.  Assists in listing real 

property. Assists taxpayers, attorneys, appraisers, and others as needed.  Provides information to the public on tax laws 

and policies. Performs work necessary for updating GIS.  Related work as required.  Work is performed under the 

supervision of the Tax Administrator. 

 

SPECIFIC DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

SPECIFIC JOB FUNCTIONS 

- Manages and verifies land records through transfers, splits, recombinations, and estate files.  Confers with 

property owners, attorneys, and others to assist with ownership inquiries, discrepancies.  Assigns parcel numbers 

for land divisions.  Coordinate modifications to GIS records as required.  Maintains real property files as required.    

- Participates in the County-wide revaluation project.  

- Assists in person, via email or telephone processes and changes in real estate values, acreage, ownership, legal 

description, parcel numbers, land divisions, etc.  Provides information based on county tax laws and procedures.   

- Performs statutory audits on exempt/excluded properties and properties receiving, and not limited to, present 

use, property tax relief and other exclusion/exemptions as per N.C.G.S.  Submits applications for such to the tax 

administrator.  Assists with completion of the applications.  

- Utilizes computerized data entry for word processing, spreadsheet and/or file maintenance to enter, store and/or 

retrieve information as requested.  Summarized data in preparation for reports.   

- Prepares correspondence, reports, etc. Assume responsibility for correctness of spelling, punctuation, grammar 

and format or correspondence and reports.  

- May assist the public with completion of listings, assessments, billings, etc.  Lists real property and assists with 

listing personal property. Assigns account numbers.  Entering, verifying, editing, and correcting data as required.  

Assists the public with locating property on maps and printing property record cards.  Verifies PIN for deed filing.   

- Maintains GIS spreadsheet for updates by Atlas Geographic Data, Inc. to the GIS software.   

- Prepares a variety of reports as directed.  

 

 

ADDITIONAL JOB FUNCTIONS/SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

- Performs other related work as required. 

- Thorough knowledge of the procedures and policies of the tax department as such pertains to the performance of 

the duties of the position. 



Washington County  
Tax Land Records Coordinator Position v20230701 Page 2 of 2 

- Requires the ability to read reports, forms, abstracts, applications, statutes, maps, procedures, directions, permits, 

etc. and explain real property transfer policies and methods to the public.    

- Requires the ability to perform under stress and deal with others acting under stress.  
- Requires attention to detail, strong math skills, and good verbal and written communication skills as well 

as exceptional customer service skills. 

- Requires strong analytical/critical thinking and problem-solving skills. 

- Position requires maintenance of a high level of confidentiality. 

- Must take and successfully pass a pre-employment drug test, Motor Vehicle Records driver license check, and criminal 

background check. Must submit to random, reasonable suspicion, and post-accident drug and alcohol testing.  In-

county residency within one (1) year of employment is preferred, but not required. 

- DISCLAIMER: This position description is not an employment agreement or contract.  Management reserves the 
exclusive right to alter this description at any time without notice. 

 

TRAINING & EXPERIENCE 
- Associates degree in business administration, finance, accounting or related field preferred along with some 

supervisory experience, or any equivalent combination of education and experience.  

- Valid North Carolina driver’s license required upon hire and duration of employment. 

- Completion of N. C. Property Mappers Association mappers certification within the first 2 years of employment. 

Completion of N. C. Department of Revenue’s & UNC School of Gov’t courses regarding assessment and collection.   

- Must be proficient with and have experience using computers and basic office productivity software (preferably 

Microsoft Office products) as well as experience with basic office machinery (computer, printer, fax, scanner, 10-key 

calculator).   

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OR STANDARDS REQUIRED 

TO PERFORM CRITICAL/ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 

Physical Requirements:  Must be physically able to operate a variety of machinery and equipment including computers, 

typewriters, calculators, copiers, facsimile machines, etc.  Must be physically able to exert a negligible amount of force 

frequently or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull, or otherwise move objects.  Sedentary work involves sitting most of the time, 

but may involve walking or standing for brief periods of time. 

Data Conception:  Requires the ability to compare and or judge the readily observable functional, structural, or compositional 

characteristics (whether similar to or divergent from obvious standards) of data, people, or things. 

Interpersonal Communication:  Requires the ability of speaking and/or signaling people to convey or exchange information. 

Includes giving instructions, assignments and/or directions to subordinates and assistants.  

Language Ability: Requires the ability to read various reports, records, forms, budgets, invoices, legal documents, contracts, 

insurance statements, etc. Requires the ability to prepare reports, correspondence, studies, advertisements, etc., utilizing 

proper formats and conforming to all rules of grammar, diction and style. Requires the ability to speak before groups of people 

with poise, voice control and confidence. 

Intelligence: Requires the ability to apply principles of logical or scientific thinking to define problems, collect data, establish 

facts, and draw valid conclusions; to interpret an extensive variety of technical instructions in mathematical or diagrammatic 

form; deal with several abstract and concrete variables. 

Verbal Aptitude: Requires the ability to record and deliver information and to follow and give verbal and written instructions. 

Must be able to communicate effectively and efficiently in a variety of technical or professional languages including accounting, 

personnel and governmental terminology.  

Numerical Aptitude: Requires the ability to utilize mathematical formulas; adding and subtracting totals; multiplying and 

dividing; determining percentages and decimals. 

Form/Spatial Aptitude: Requires the ability to inspect items for proper length, width and shape, visually with office equipment 

and recording devices. 

Motor Coordination: Requires the ability to coordinate hands and eyes in using automated office equipment to operate motor 

vehicles. 

Manual Dexterity: Requires the ability to handle a variety of items, office equipment, control knobs, switches, etc.  Must have 

minimal levels of eye/hand/foot coordination.  



Agenda Item Memo  Page 1 of 2 
 

       
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: August 7th, 2023   MEMO Date: July 28th, 2023                     ITEM:    
SUBJECT:  Lease of 205 East Main St. to NC Dept. of Adult Correction for Probation Offices   
DEPARTMENT: n/a 
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Proposed draft Lease Agreement (9 pgs - including Exhibits A & B) 

PURPOSE: To approve the attached proposed lease of 205 E. Main St. to the State of North Carolina for its use 
of that property for an initial three (3) year term as a probation office. 
 
BACKGROUND:   

- NCGS § 15-209 reads as follows:  Accommodations for probation offices. (a) The county commissioners in 
each county in which a probation office exists shall provide, in or near the courthouse, suitable office space 
for those probation officers assigned to the county who have probationary caseloads and their 
administrative support. This requirement does not include management staff of the Division of Community 
Supervision and Reentry of the Department of Adult Correction, nonprobation staff, or other Division of 
Community Supervision and Reentry of the Department of Adult Correction employees. 
 

- The State is not required to reimburse or provide any monetary compensation for this mandated space.   
 

- NCGS § 160A-274.  Sale, lease, exchange and joint use of governmental property. 
 

o Subsection (b) reads as follows: Any governmental unit may, upon such terms and conditions as it 
deems wise, with or without consideration, exchange with, lease to, lease from, sell to, or purchase 
from any other governmental unit any interest in real or personal property. 

 
- For over a decade, the County has incurred the cost of leasing privately owned property at 204 E Water St. 

and subleased this property to the State of North Carolina for its use as county probation office space.   
 

- Management has recommended the strategic relocation of these probation offices from private property to 
county owned property for many years.  Due to the relatively recent relocation of the elections, emergency 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 2 of 2 
 

management, and planning offices, the county owned facility at 205 E. Main St. became an available option 
for finally providing probation office space on county owned property. 

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS/IMPACTS:   

- Management estimates the proposed relocation will save Washington County over $17,000 per year. 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  

 
1. Approve the proposed draft Lease Agreement, and authorize the 

County Manager/County Attorney (after making any additional 
minor modifications to those considered reasonable or necessary for 
the County’s benefit and protection) to execute the final version 
thereof on behalf of Washington County. 



WASHINGTON COUNTY  FILE NUMBER LEASE AGENT INITIAL 
LAST UPDATE MAY 2023             1 | P a g e

THIS LEASE DOES NOT BECOME EFFECTIVE UNTIL EXECUTED 
 BY THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF ADULT CORRECTION 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WASHINGTON      LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the ______day of 
__________________, 2023, by and between, COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, hereinafter 
designated as Lessor, and the STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA, hereinafter designated as Lessee; 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

THAT WHEREAS, authority to approve and execute this lease agreement was delegated to the 
Department of Administration by resolution adopted by the Governor and Council of State on the 1st 
day of September 1981; and as amended on September 8, 1999, and December 7th, 1999, and 
December 6, 2020 and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have mutually agreed to the terms of this lease agreement as 
hereinafter set out, 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the rental hereinafter agreed to be paid and the terms 
and conditions hereinafter set forth, Lessor does hereby let and lease unto Lessee and Lessee hereby 
takes and leases from Lessor for and during the period of time and subject to the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set out certain space in the City of Plymouth, County of Washington, North Carolina, 
more particularly described as follows: 

Being approximately +932 net square feet of office space located at 205 E. Main Street; 
Washington County; Plymouth, North Carolina and further described in the floor plan,  
Exhibit “A”.  

(NC DEPARTMENT OFADULT CORRECTION, DIVISION 1, DISTRICT 2) 

THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The term of this lease shall be for a period of three (3) years, commencing on 1st day of
September 2023, or as soon thereafter as the leased premises are ceded to the Lessee and terminating 
on the 31st day of August 2026. 

2. During the term of the lease, the Lessee shall pay to the Lessor as rental for said premises
the sum of $1.00 dollar per annum, said rental to be payable within 15 days from receipt of invoice. 
The Lessee agrees to pay the aforesaid rental to the Lessor at the address specified, or, to such other 
address as the Lessor may designate by a notice in writing at least 15 days prior to the due date. 

3. Lessor agrees to furnish to the Lessee, as a part of the consideration for this lease, the
following services, and utilities to the satisfaction of the Lessee.  

A. Heating facilities, air conditioning facilities, adequate electrical facilities, adequate
lighting fixtures and sockets, hot and cold-water facilities, and adequate toilet facilities.

B. Maintenance of lawns, sidewalks, shrubbery, parking, paved areas and common areas
and disposal of trash is required.



 

WASHINGTON COUNTY  FILE NUMBER LEASE AGENT INITIAL  
LAST UPDATE MAY 2023                                                                                                                           2 | P a g e  
 

C.  Lessor provides required fire extinguishers and servicing, pest control, and outside 
trash disposal, including provision for the handling of recyclable items such as 
aluminum cans, cardboard, and paper. All pesticides must be applied by a licensed 
technician.   

 
D.  All utilities except telecommunications. 
 
E.  Daily janitorial service and supplies. 
 
F.  Parking. 
 
G.  If applicable elevator service. 
 
H.  The leased premises are generally accessible to persons with disabilities.  This shall 

include access to the premises from the parking areas (where applicable), into the 
premises via any common areas of the building and access to accessible restroom. 

 
I.  Any fire or safety inspection fees, stormwater fees, or land transfer tax/fees. 
 
J.  All other terms and conditions of the signed “Proposal to Lease to the State of North 

Carolina” Form PO-28 incorporated herein by reference and the “Specifications for 
Non-advertised Lease” (Exhibit B). 

 
 4.  During the lease term, the Lessor shall keep the leased premises in good repair and 
tenantable condition, to the end that all facilities are kept in operative condition.  Maintenance shall 
include but is not limited to furnishing and replacing electrical light fixture ballasts, air conditioning 
and ventilating equipment filter pads, if applicable, and broken glass.  In case Lessor shall, after notice 
in writing from the Lessee in regard to a specified condition, fail, refuse, or neglect to correct said 
condition, or in the event of an emergency constituting a hazard to the health or safety of the Lessee's 
employees, property, or invitees, it shall then be lawful for the Lessee in addition to any other remedy 
the Lessee may have, to make such repair at its own cost and to deduct the amount thereof from the 
rent that may then be thereafter become due hereunder.  The Lessor reserves the right to enter and 
inspect the leased premises, at reasonable times, and to make necessary repairs to the premises. 
 
 5.  It is understood and agreed that Lessor shall, at the beginning of said lease term as 
hereinabove set forth, have the leased premises in a condition satisfactory to Lessee, including repairs, 
painting, partitioning, remodeling, plumbing and electrical wiring suitable for the purposes for which 
the leased premises will be used by Lessee. 
 

6.  The Lessee shall have the right during the existence of this lease, with the Lessor's prior 
consent, to make alterations, attach fixtures and equipment, and erect additions, structures, or signs in 
or upon the leased premises. Such fixtures, additions, structures, or signs so placed in or upon or 
attached to the leased premises under this lease or any prior lease of which this lease is an extension or 
renewal shall be and remain the property of the Lessee and may be removed therefrom by the Lessee 
prior to the termination of this lease or any renewal or extension thereof, or within a reasonable time 
thereafter.  The Lessee shall have no duty to remove any improvement or fixture placed by it on the 
premises or to restore any portion of the premises altered by it.  In the event Lessee elects to remove 
his improvements or fixtures and such removal causes damage or injury to the demised premises, 
Lessee will repair only to the extent of any such damage or injury. 

 
 7.  If the said premises are destroyed by fire or other casualty without fault of the Lessee, this 
lease shall immediately terminate, and the rent shall be apportioned to the time of the damage.  In case 
of partial destruction or damage by fire or other casualty without fault of the Lessee, so as to render the 
premises untenantable in whole or in part, there shall be an apportionment of the rent until the damage 
has been repaired.  During such a period of repair, Lessee shall have the right to obtain similar office 



 

WASHINGTON COUNTY  FILE NUMBER LEASE AGENT INITIAL  
LAST UPDATE MAY 2023                                                                                                                           3 | P a g e  
 

space at the expense of Lessee or the Lessee may terminate the lease by giving fifteen (15) days 
written notice to the Lessor. 
 
 8.  Lessor shall be liable to Lessee for any loss or damage suffered by Lessee which is a direct 
result of the failure of Lessor to perform an act required by this lease, and provided that Lessor could 
reasonably have complied with said requirement. 
 
 9.  Upon termination of this lease, the Lessee will peaceably surrender the leased premises in as 
good order and condition as when received, reasonable use and wear and damage by fire, war, riots, 
insurrection, public calamity, by the elements, by act of God, or by circumstances over which Lessee 
had no control or for which Lessor is responsible pursuant to this lease, excepted.  
 
 10. The Lessor agrees that the Lessee, upon keeping and performing the covenants and 
agreements herein contained, shall at all times during the existence of this lease peaceably and quietly 
have, hold, and enjoy the leased premises free from the adverse claims of any person. 
 
 11.  The failure of either party to insist in any instance upon strict performance of any of the 
terms and conditions herein set forth shall not be construed as a waiver of the same in any other 
instance.  No modification of any provision hereof and no cancellation or surrender thereof shall be 
valid unless in writing and signed and agreed to by both parties. 
 
 12.  Any hold over after the expiration of the said term or any extension thereof, shall be 
construed to be a tenancy from month to month, and shall otherwise be on the terms and conditions 
herein specified, so far as applicable; however, either party shall give not less than 60 days written 
notice to terminate the tenancy. 
 
 13.  The parties to this lease agree and understand that the continuation of this lease agreement 
for the term period set forth herein, or any extension or renewal thereof, is dependent upon and subject 
to the appropriation, allocation, or availability of funds for this purpose to the agency of the Lessee 
responsible for payment of said rental.  The parties to this lease also agree that in the event the agency 
of the Lessee or that body responsible for the appropriations of said funds, in its sole discretion, 
determines, in view of its total local office operations that available funding for the payment of rents 
are insufficient to continue the operation of its local offices on the premise leased herein, it may choose 
to terminate the lease agreement set forth herein by giving Lessor written notice of said termination, 
and the lease agreement shall terminate immediately without any further liability to Lessee. 
 
 14.  All notices herein provided to be given, or which may be given by either party to the other, 
shall be deemed to have been fully given when made in writing and deposited in the United States 
mail, certified and postage prepaid and addressed as follows: 
 

 To the Lessor: 
Washington County 
P.O. Box 1007 
Plymouth, North Carolina  27962 

              w/copy to:  N/A  
 

              To the Lessee: 
NC Department of Adult Correction (DAC), Division 1, District 2  
Address: 1308 Highland Drive, Suite 102 
Washington, North Carolina  27889 
 

with a copy to: 
State Property Office  
Attn: Leasing Manager and Space Planning Section   
1321 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, North Carolina  27699-1321   



 

WASHINGTON COUNTY  FILE NUMBER LEASE AGENT INITIAL  
LAST UPDATE MAY 2023                                                                                                                           4 | P a g e  
 

 
Nothing herein contained shall preclude the giving of such notice by personal service.  The 

address to which notices shall be mailed as aforesaid to either party may be changed by written notice. 
 

15. Within 30 days of Commencement Date, Lessor agrees to construct, upfit, repair and 
maintain the Premises in accordance with (a) the approved floor plan attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
(b) the applicable regulation and building code provisions of the governmental authority having 
jurisdiction over the Premises. 

 
16.  N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any 

State Employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to 
do business with the State.  By execution of any response in this procurement, you attest, for your 
entire organization and its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been 
offered, accepted, or promised by any employees of your organization. 
 
 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, this lease has been executed by the parties hereto, in duplicate 
originals, as of the date first above written. 
 
 

The rest of this page is intentionally left blank. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

WASHINGTON COUNTY  FILE NUMBER LEASE AGENT INITIAL  
LAST UPDATE MAY 2023                                                                                                                           5 | P a g e  
 

 
 

 
LESSEE: 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

 
 
 

By: _____________________________ (SEAL) 
Joanne Rowland, Director 
DAC Purchasing and Logistics 
 

 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF WAKE 
 
 I, ______________________________________, a Notary Public in and for the County and 
State aforesaid, do hereby certify that  Joanne Rowland, personally appeared before me this date and 
acknowledged the due execution by him of the foregoing instrument as Director of State Property 
Office of the Department of Administration of the State of North Carolina, for the purposes therein 
expressed. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and Notarial Seal this the ____day of 
____________________, 2023. 
 
 
           ______   
                                                                        Notary Public 
       

Printed Name:   _______   
 
 
My Commission Expires: _____________________                                              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

WASHINGTON COUNTY  FILE NUMBER LEASE AGENT INITIAL  
LAST UPDATE MAY 2023                                                                                                                           6 | P a g e  
 

 
LESSOR: 
 
WASHINGTON COUNTY 
     

    
 

            By:  _______________________________ (SEAL) 
        Curtis S. Potter 
        Washington County Manager 
                 

 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF                                       ________ 
 
 I, ______________________________________,  a Notary Public in the  
County of     , and State aforesaid, do hereby certify that Curtis S. Potter 
personally came before me this day and acknowledge the due execution of the foregoing instrument on 
behalf of the limited liability company and for the purposes stated herein 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and Notarial Seal this the ____day of 
____________________, 2023. 

 

 
                                                          ______   
                                                     Notary Public 
       

Printed Name:    ______  
 
 
My Commission Expires:      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

WASHINGTON COUNTY  FILE NUMBER LEASE AGENT INITIAL  
LAST UPDATE MAY 2023                                                                                                                           7 | P a g e  
 

Exhibit A 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

WASHINGTON COUNTY  FILE NUMBER LEASE AGENT INITIAL  
LAST UPDATE MAY 2023                                                                                                                           8 | P a g e  
 

Exhibit B 
 

SPECIFICATIONS FOR NON-ADVERTISED LEASE 

 
1.  The floor plan should show building exits for the proposed space. Also provide the year the building was 

constructed. 
 

2. This facility must provide environment that is barrier free and easily accessible to physically disabled staff, 
visitors, and clientele. Compliance with the State Building Code and the Americans with Disabilities Act is 
required. Toilet facilities shall be ADA accessible and code compliant. 

3. The air conditioning and heating system shall be maintained by Lessor including frequent filter cleaning and 
replacement. Year-round ventilation shall be provided to prevent stale air problems and unacceptable CO2 
content. Waiting areas, LAN room and conference room(s) may require additional HVAC. 

 
4. Telecommunication room temperature should be within a range of 65˚ to a maximum of 75˚. This is a 24-

hour per day, 7 day per week requirement. A separate HVAC system may be required to maintain this 
temperature range. 

 
5. All lighting and electrical maintenance shall be furnished by Lessor including the replacement of ballasts, light 

tubes, and replacement bulbs. 

 
6. The Lessor shall provide required fire extinguishers and servicing, pest control (by a licensed technician) and 

outside trash disposal including provision for the handling of recycling items such as aluminum cans, cardboard, 
and paper. Frequent trash and recycling pick -up required. Year- round maintenance is required to maintain a 
neat and professional appearance of the site at all times. 

 
7. Lessor shall provide internal and external sign that will provide easy identification of the office by the 

general public. 

 
8. Locking hardware is required on all storage rooms, equipment rooms, files rooms and LAN room. Supply 

storage closets require shelving. 

 
9. The Lessor shall provide Sufficient window coverings shall be provided to control glare within the space. 

(Venetian blinds or acceptable equivalent). 
 

10. The Lessor shall provide Vinyl tile or other floor covering acceptable to the State in all finished areas. Prefer 
carpeting for all offices and conference rooms. If floors are carpeted, they should be commercial grade 26 oz. 
or 24 oz carpet squares preferred, acceptable to the lessee. LVT tile is preferred in the waiting area, LAN 
room(s), kitchenette, restrooms and hallways. LAN room tile should be anti-static. New or like-new carpet is 
preferred. If not new, carpets must be professionally cleaned and all stains removed before occupancy. High 
traffic areas will require frequent cleaning and replacement of floor finishes to maintain a neat, clean, high-
quality finish and will be at the State Property Office’s discretion. 

 



 

WASHINGTON COUNTY  FILE NUMBER LEASE AGENT INITIAL  
LAST UPDATE MAY 2023                                                                                                                           9 | P a g e  
 

 

11. Lessor shall shampoo all carpet and clean the outside of the building windows annually. 

 
12. Lessor shall be responsible for snow and debris removal as quickly as possible to avoid work delays. 

 
13. The per square foot price proposal is based on the floor plan and repair lists agreed upon by the State of North 

Carolina and includes but it not limited to all partitions, demolition, and up fitting costs: building and grounds 
maintenance; property taxes; insurance; fire and safety inspection fees; stormwater fees; land transfer tax; 
common area maintenance and other building operational costs. 

 
 

14. The number of keys to be provided to the State for each lockset shall be reasonably determined by the State 
prior to occupancy, at no cost to the State. 

 
15. All parking areas shall be adequately lighted and located within a reasonable distance of the office. 

 
16. Lessor shall provide all conduits and pull strings from above the ceiling to outlet boxes. State to install wiring 

and cover plates. 
 

17. Lessor is responsible for providing all cleaning supplies and paper and soap products for kitchen and 
bathrooms regardless of who contracts for janitorial services. 

 

 
The lesson is in agreement with the above conditions and the conditions of the also signed “proposal to Lease to the 
State of North Carolina” Form PO-28. 

 

 
        _______________    
Signature of the Lessor     Date 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2023-020 
 

Page 1 

 

   

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 
 ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2023-020 
 

RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF RECIPIENT  
ACCEPTANCE OF ARP FUNDS FOR AN ASSET INVENTORY AND ASSESSMENT 

STUDY  
  

WHEREAS, the County of Washington has qualified for the Viability Utility Reserve (VUR) designation associated 
with the American Rescue Plan (ARP) funded from the State Fiscal Recovery Fund established in S.L. 2021-180 to assist 
eligible units of government with meeting their water/wastewater infrastructure needs, and  
  

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality has offered American Rescue Plan (ARP) 
funding in the amount of $970,200 to perform an Asset Inventory and Assessment Study detailed in the submitted 
application, and   
  

WHEREAS, the County of Washington intends to perform said project in accordance with the agreed scope of 
work.  
  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON COUNTY,   
  

1. That the County of Washington does hereby accept the American Rescue Plan Grant offer of $970,000.  
  
2. That the County of Washington does hereby give assurance to the North Carolina Department of 

Environmental Quality that any Conditions or Assurances contained in the Award Offer will be adhered to.  
  
3. That Curtis Potter, County Manager/County Attorney and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed 

to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection with this project; to 
make the assurances as contained above; and to execute such other documents as may be required by the 
Division of Water Infrastructure.  

 
Adopted this the ________ of __________, 2023 at Plymouth, North Carolina. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________                     (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Board 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


Washington County Resolution 2023-021 Page 1  

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 
 ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2023-021 
 

RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF RECIPIENT 
ACCEPTANCE OF ARP FUNDS FOR AN ASSET INVENTORY AND ASSESSMENT 

STUDY 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Washington has qualified for the Viability Utility Reserve (VUR) designation associated 
with the American Rescue Plan (ARP) funded from the State Fiscal Recovery Fund established in S.L. 2021-180 to assist 
eligible units of government with meeting their water/wastewater infrastructure needs, and  
  

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality has offered American Rescue Plan (ARP) 
funding in the amount of $5,472,000 to perform an Asset Inventory and Assessment Study detailed in the submitted 
application, and   
  

WHEREAS, the County of Washington intends to perform said project in accordance with the agreed scope of 
work.  
  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON COUNTY,   
  

1. That the County of Washington does hereby accept the American Rescue Plan Grant offer of $5,472,000.  
  
2. That the County of Washington does hereby give assurance to the North Carolina Department of 

Environmental Quality that any Conditions or Assurances contained in the Award Offer will be adhered to.  
  
3. That Curtis Potter, County Manager/County Attorney and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and 

directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection with this 
project; to make the assurances as contained above; and to execute such other documents as may be 
required by the Division of Water Infrastructure.  

 
Adopted this the ________ of __________, 2023 at Plymouth, North Carolina. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________                     (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Board 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


ORDER 
 

FOR COLLECTION OF AD VALOREM TAXES 
 

Fiscal Year 2023 – 2024 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON 
 
TO:  SHERRI M. WILKINS   
 Tax Collector of Washington County 
 
 You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set 
forth in the tax records filed in the office of Washington County Tax Collector and in the 
tax receipts herein delivered to you, in the amounts and from the taxpayers likewise 
therein set forth. Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien upon all real property of 
the respective taxpayers in the County of Washington, and this order shall be a full and 
sufficient authority to direct, require and enable you to levy on and sell any real or 
personal property of such taxpayers, for and on account thereon, in accordance with law.  
You are authorized to call upon the Sheriff of Washington County and his deputies to 
levy upon and sell personal property for unpaid taxes when you deem it to be advisable. 
 
 Witness my hand and official seal, this 7th day of August, 2023. 
 
 

 
 
             

Julius Walker, Jr. 
Chair 

 
 
             

Julie Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 





































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:     August 7, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-5 minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Additionally, this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   3 
 
       DATE:    August 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Tax Collector’s Annual Settlement Report, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax 

Administrator  
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Washington County Tax Administrator, will speak about the Tax 
Collector’s Annual Settlement Report. 
 
Ms. Wilkins will need a motion for you to approve the Order to Collect for FY23-24.  
See attached. 
 
 
 



 pg. 1 

WASHINGTON COUNTY 
                          P.O. BOX 1007 
      Plymouth, North Carolina 27962  

       

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

August 7, 2023 

 

To: Washington County Board of Commissioners 

From: Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 

Re: Annual Settlement Statement 

 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statute 105-373, I submit the following report for Fiscal 

Year 2022 – 2023: 

 

The total tax levy was $8,981,840. This was the billing for the original scroll, the public utility scroll, 

discoveries, and penalties. This amount has been adjusted for releases of $2,835. The discounts taken 

through payments received in July and August totaled $52,187. This amount does not include the 

registered motor vehicle levy, this is billed and collected through NCVTS.  

 

Per the NCVTS Finance Report, the collections for NCVTS totaled $974,818. The tax office does not 

handle the collection of motor vehicle taxes. We do process any adjustments to value, the situs issues, 

refunds and other questions.   

 

The amount of Real and Personal property not collected is $1,968,776. $1,681,605 of this total is the 

balance due from Albemarle Beach Solar. A listing of the delinquent taxpayers and the amounts 

owed are available in our office for your inspection.  

 

The total amount of collections and credits towards the levy was $ 6,931,749. 

 

Our collections for prior years’ taxes were $412,250. The amount collected through Debt Setoff was 

$19,448, and through wage garnishments and attachments was $24,636. 

 

This year we billed and collected for the Washington County Ad Valorem Tax, the Watershed 1972 

Ref Tax, Town of Creswell Ad Valorem Tax, Solid Waste User Fee, Albemarle Drainage District, 

and Pungo3 River Drainage District. We collected for Drainage District 5. 

   

The tax office staff has made diligent efforts to collect all taxes due. In addition to our efforts in the 

office, we also work with Zacchaeus Legal Services in the foreclosure proceedings.  

 

I would like to commend all the tax office staff for their efforts in handling all the issues that arise 

from the billings and collections mentioned above. I would also like to recognize the Permits office, 

GIS/Mapping office, Register of Deeds office and the Clerk of Courts office. We work closely with 

these offices, and I appreciate the outstanding working relationship that we have.  



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     August 7, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Late Application for Disabled Veterans Exemption, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax 

Administrator 
 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 

Regarding the late application for the disabled veteran’s exemption, North 
Carolina General Statute 105-282.1(a1) requires that the Board of County 
Commissioners be responsible for approving a late application, if there is a 
showing of good cause why the application was filed after the deadline. James 
Anthony Respass submitted his application on July 28, 2023. He was approved 
for the veterans’ disability on October 3, 2022 but it took until July 26th, 2023 to 
get the Certification for Disabled Veteran’s form signed by a representative of 
the NCDMVA. I recommend this application be approved. 



WASHINGTON COUNTY 
                          P.O. BOX 1007 
      Plymouth, North Carolina 27962  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TO:  Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 

FROM: Sherri Wilkins 

Tax Administrator 

 

DATE:  July 28, 2023 

 

RE:   Approval of late Application for Property Tax Relief 

 

 

Regarding the late application for the disabled veteran’s exemption, North Carolina General Statute 105-

282.1(a1) requires that the Board of County Commissioners be responsible for approving a late application, if 

there is a showing of good cause why the application was filed after the deadline. James Anthony Respass 

submitted his application on July 28, 2023. He was approved for the veterans’ disability on October 3, 2022 

but it took until July 26th, 2023 to get the Certification for Disabled Veteran’s form signed by a representative 

of the NCDMVA. I recommend this application be approved. 

 

Approved     

 

Not Approved     

 

 

This 7th day of August, 2023 

 

 

               

Julius Walker, Jr, Chairman 

 

 

 

               

Julie Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

       Clerk to the Board 

















 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
       DATE:     August 7, 2023 
 
ITEM:       Department Information Update:  Planning & Inspections, Mr. Allen 

Pittman 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Each month a different Department Head will be asked to come and speak to the 
Commissioners about the work going on in their area.  For the August 7, 2023, meeting, 
Mr. Pittman will give a presentation on what’s going on with the Planning & Inspections 
Department. 
 
 
 
 
 



ALLEN PITTMAN, CFM
DIRECTOR



Washington County
Planning Board

Katie Walker, Chair

         Mary Barnes                    Keith Davenport

         Estelle "Bunny" Sanders          Thomas Patrick

          Charles Weathersbee            Marty Swett



•The Washington County Board of 

Commissioners did enact an Ordinance 

establishing a Planning Board for 

Washington County effective January 2, 

1996. 

This Board is a volunteer Board, with no 

compensation expected. 



The Planning Board

7 members
All volunteer.
Meets 1 time per month.
Advise Commissioners on development ordinances



Mission Statement:

•The Planning Board is established 

to advise the Board of 

Commissioners on all matters 

related to the orderly growth and 

development of Washington 

County.



The Planning Board has adopted Rules of  Procedure

A copy of the approved Board Rules is in The Commissioner’s 

agenda packet

These rules highlight attendance requirements of board 

members, as well as procedures for meetings and voting at 

meetings.

The Planning Board continues to work for development and 

growth in Washington County



EXISTING DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

Ordinances  Under Review

• Zoning Ordinance-This Ordinance is intended to promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the public 

and to implement the County’s adopted Land Use Plan for the orderly and controlled development of the 

County.

• Subdivision Ordinance-This Ordinance establishes procedures and standards for the development and 

subdivision of land within the limits of the jurisdiction of Washington County.

• Mobile Home and Travel Trailer Park Ordinance – This Ordinance regulates the planning and construction of 
mobile home and travel trailer parks throughout the County and is enforced by the County Building Inspector.

• Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance-This Ordinance regulates development within identified flood zones to 

minimize public and private losses due to flood conditions. And is enforced by the Director of Planning and 

Inspections for the County;



Permits and Inspections



WHEN DO I NEED A PERMIT
PER NC G.S. 160D-1110

No person may commence or proceed with:

• The construction, reconstruction, alteration, repair, movement to another site, removal or 

demolition of any building;

•  The installation, extension or general repair of any plumbing system;

•  The installation, extension, alteration , or general repair of any heating or cooling equipment 

system;

• The installation, extension, alteration or general repair of any electrical wiring, devices, 

appliances or equipment

without first securing from the Inspection Department with jurisdiction over the site of the work each 

permit required by the North Carolina State Building Codes and other State or local ordinance or 

regulation applicable to the work.



CERTIFICATIONS
Of Building  Code Official



• 5 Level 3 Certificates From Code 
Officials Qualification Board

• Building

• Electrical

• Plumbing

• Mechanical

• Fire Prevention



• Certified Floodplain 
Manager (CFM)

• Association of 
State Floodplain 
Managers

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-NC

https://www.pngall.com/flood-png/download/16584
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/3.0/


• State Building and Electrical Codes – This code is in conformance to County and State 

regulations. The County has implemented a permitting system to ensure that all structures built within the 

region are compliant with State requirements

Regulations

• Laws and Rules for Ground Absorption Sewage Disposal Systems – These regulations control the use of 

specified sanitary sewage disposal systems in the County. The regulations are administered by the Washington 

County Health Department;

• Signage Regulations- This article regulates the size, location, height, and construction of signs in Washington 
County.



SOME OF THE 
INFORMATION USED





ELECTRICAL





This  Photo by Unknown Author i s licensed under CC BY

https://www.shikaridiamonds.com.au/2019/05/plumbing-tips-and-recommendations.html
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/




This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SAThis Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA

https://www.flickr.com/photos/jackiebese/9100875242/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/
https://www.orbdesigns.com/wp/archives/267/dsc_0179
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/










• NC Fire Code 2018 Section 106 requires local 

governments to have a periodic inspection schedule 

for the purpose of identifying activities and conditions 

in buildings, structures and premises that pose dangers 

of fire, explosion, or related hazards. The inspection 

schedule must be approved by the local governing 

body and submitted to the Office of State Fire Marshal 

of the Department of Insurance.

• NCGS 58-2-95 Commissioner of Insurance to 

supervise local inspectors.The Commissioner has 

general supervision over local fire prevention 

inspectors and authority to take steps to have all the 

provisions of the law enforced.

• NCGS 143-151.13 states no person shall engage in 

Fire Code enforcement unless that person possesses a 

valid standard, probationary or limited certificate 

issued by the NC Code Officials Qualification Board.









This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA

https://positek.net/considering-a-home-generator/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/




CRS
COMMUNITY RATING SYSTEM

WASHINGTON COUNTY – CLASS 7 -  15% REDUCTION FLOOD INSURANCE RATES

PLYMOUTH-ROPER-CRESWELL-CLASS 8 – 10% REDUCTION FLOOD INSURANCE RATES





Credit Points Class
Premium 

Reduction
SFHA*

Premium 
Reduction
Non-SFHA**

4,500+ 1 45% 10%

4,000 – 4,499 2 40% 10%

3,500 – 3,999 3 35% 10%

3,000 – 3,499 4 30% 10%

2,500 – 2,999 5 25% 10%

2,000 – 2,499 6 20% 10%

1,500 – 1,999 7 15% 5%

1,000 – 1,499 8 10% 5%

500 – 999 9 5% 5%

0 – 499 10 0 0

CRS Credit Points, Classes and Premium Discounts



The Community Rating System (CRS) is a voluntary incentive program 
that recognizes and encourages community floodplain management 
practices that exceed the minimum requirements of the National Flood 
Insurance Program (NFIP). Over 1,500 communities participate 
nationwide.

In CRS communities, flood insurance premium rates are discounted to 
reflect the reduced flood risk resulting from the community’s efforts that 
address the three goals of the program:

1. Reduce and avoid flood damage to insurable property
2. Strengthen and support the insurance aspects of the National Flood Insurance 
Program
3. Foster comprehensive floodplain management

https://www.fema.gov/flood-insurance
https://www.fema.gov/flood-insurance






Do you have a mortgage?

Homes and businesses in high-risk 
flood areas with government-backed 
mortgages are required to have flood 
insurance.

While flood insurance is not federally 
required if you live outside of the high-
risk area, your lender may still require 
you to have insurance.



Questions???????????????



































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:     August 7, 2023 
 
ITEM:      Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing---Special Use Permit, Mr. Allen Pittman, 

Planning/Inspections 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
The Planning Board received a Special Permit Use application for the construction of a 
cell tower at 235 NC Highway 45 South in Plymouth. The Planning Board held a public 
hearing and approved the Special Permit Use application with no conditions and now it 
requires a hearing by the Commissioners for your approval. Tonight is that hearing and 
instructions for the quasi-judicial hearing are attached along with pertinent 
documentation.  (See attached.) 
 
 
 
 
 



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures  Page 1 of 6 

Procedures for Quasi-Judicial Hearing for  

Special Use Permit (“SUP”): 

I. MOTION to go into Public Hearing to hold a quasi-judicial hearing on the following case: 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION filed by Tillman Infrastructure, LLC on 4/13/23  

seeking a Special Use Permit pursuant to Article 3A, Subsection C(L) of the Washington 

County Zoning Ordinance to: build a new 340’ guyed telecommunication tower on 

property located at 235 NC Hwy 45 South, Plymouth, NC. 

 

II. INSTRUCTION RE QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCEDURE (Attorney/Planning Director)  

 

1. Special Use Permits are governed by NCGS 160D and Article 5 of the Washington County 
Zoning Ordinance.  NCGS 160D-406 and 160D-705 require the use of quasi-judicial 
procedures during public hearings held to consider such matters. 
 

2. Quasi-judicial proceedings are different than other public hearings in that not everyone 
has the right to present evidence before this Board and to become a party to this 
proceeding.   A Quasi-judicial proceeding is much like a court proceeding where an 
individual’s rights and interests are being decided under specific rules of procedure.  
Parties to this case have the right to present evidence and cross examine witnesses. The 
burden of proof in these cases typically lies with the Applicant.   The extent to which the 
Rules of Evidence used in courts apply is up to the discretion of the Board.  
 

3. Only those who can demonstrate that they will be affected by the outcome of the 
hearing may become parties. After a description of the person’s interest in this case, the 
Board will determine whether they will be allowed to present evidence as a party. 
Please note, you do not have to be a party to testify if someone who is a party calls you 
as a witness.  All parties and witnesses who intend to present evidence or testify before 
this Board must be sworn in.  
 

4. As a quasi-judicial hearing, by law it must adhere to certain procedures, as there are 
legal standards that must be followed.  To that end please consider the following:  

 
A. The Board must base its decisions only on the evidence presented, including 

testimony given under oath or affirmation by any parties or witnesses called by a 
party. 

B. Please limit testimony to facts relevant to the application and applicable legal 
standards for the Board’s decision, what you know personally; no opinion 
testimony or hearsay.  

C. Parties may cross-examine each testifying party or witness after their testimony if 
there are any questions.  Cross-examination shall be limited to the matters 
testified about during the original testimony. 



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures  Page 2 of 6 

D. If you want the Board to see written evidence such as reports and maps or 
exhibits, the witness who is familiar with the evidence should ask that it be 
introduced during or at the end of his/her testimony. 

E. In order for the testimony to be considered as evidence used in making the 
decision, it can only be given by persons in attendance at the meeting; otherwise, 
it is considered hearsay. 

 

III. INSTRUCTION RE SPECIFIC REVIEW STANDARDS: (Attorney/Planning director) 

Article 5 of the Washington County Zoning Ordinance is attached in its entirety for your 

reference, with certain excerpts of relevant portions pasted below for convenience: 

 

1. Purpose and Intent:  Special use permits add flexibility to the Zoning Ordinance by 
allowing uses which would otherwise be undesirable to be established in designated 
districts under conditions imposed by the Board of Commissioners. Such permits are 
authorized under the terms of this article to provide for certain uses which cannot be 
well adjusted to their environment in particular locations in Washington County with full 
protection offered to surrounding properties by only the application of the underlying 
zoning district regulations. Further, special permit uses are those uses which, if not 
specially regulated, can have an undue impact on or be incompatible with other uses of 
land within or adjacent to a given zoning district. Based on the recommendation of the 
Planning Board, and upon the granting of a special use permit by the Board of 
Commissioners, these uses may be allowed to be located or expanded within given 
designated zoning districts under the standards, controls, limitations, performance 
criteria, restrictions and other regulations of this article. 
 

2. General Standards and Criteria for Special Use Permit Review: All applications for special 

use permit shall be reviewed using the following criteria:  

 

1. The proposed use shall be:  
a. In harmony with the adopted Land Use Plan and the Growth 

Opportunities Plan;  
b. In harmony with the intent and purpose of the zoning district in which 

the use is proposed to be located and  
c. In harmony with the character of adjacent properties and the 

surrounding neighborhoods and also with existing and proposed 
development.  

2. The proposed use shall be adequately served by essential public services such as 
streets, drainage facilities, fire protection and public water, and sewer facilities, 
where applicable.  

3. The proposed use shall not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any feature 
determined to be of significant ecological, scenic or historic importance.  

4. The proposed use shall be designed, sited and landscaped so that the use will not 
hinder or discourage the appropriate development or use of adjacent properties 
and surrounding neighborhoods.  



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures  Page 3 of 6 

5. The proposed use does not affect adversely the general plans for the physical 
development of the County as embodied in these regulations and in any plan or 
portion thereof adopted by the Planning Board.  

6. The proposed use will not affect adversely the health and safety of residents and 
workers in the County 

7. The proposed use will not be adversely affected by the existing uses.  
8. The proposed use will be placed on a lot of sufficient size to satisfy the space 

requirements of said use.  
9. The proposed use will not constitute a nuisance or hazard because of the number 

of persons who will attend or use said facility, vehicular movement, noise or fume 
generation or any type of physical activity.  

10. The standards set forth for each particular use for which a permit may be granted 
have been met.  

11. The Planning Board or Board of Commissioners may impose or require such 
additional restrictions and conditions as may be necessary to protect the health 
and safety of workers and residents in the community and to protect the value and 
use of property in the general neighborhood.  

12. The proposed use will not be contrary to the purposes stated for these regulations.  
13. Whenever the Board of Commissioners shall find in the case of any permit granted 

pursuant to the provisions of the regulations that any of the terms, conditions or 
restrictions upon which such permit was granted are not being complied with, said 
Board shall rescind and revoke such permit after giving due notice to all parties 
concerned and granting full opportunity for a public hearing. 

 

3. Special Conditions:  In granting any special use permit, the Board of Commissioners may 
impose any conditions necessary to assure that the proposed use will conform with the 
requirements of this section and will continue to do so. The Board of Commissioners 
may take all necessary actions to ensure compliance with the conditions imposed. 

- Certain specific examples are listed in Article 5(c)(2): 
 

4. Action by Planning Board:  No special use permit shall be approved unless the proposal 
has been reviewed by the Planning Board. The Planning Board shall conduct at least one 
(1) public hearing in accordance with this Ordinance. Following the public hearing, the 
Planning Board shall prepare and by motion adopt its recommendations, which may 
include changes in the applicant’s original proposal resulting from the hearing, and shall 
report such recommendations, together with any explanatory material, to the County 
Commissioners. 
 

5. Action by Board of Commissioners:  Before approving a special use permit, the Board of 
Commissioners shall hold at least one (1) public hearing in accordance with this 
Ordinance after which the Board of Commissioners may make appropriate changes to or 
impose appropriate conditions upon the proposed special use. Nothing herein shall 
preclude the Board of Commissioners from holding a joint public hearing with the 
Planning Board.  

A concurring vote of a majority of the members of Board of Commissioners shall 
be required to approve a special use permit. 

__________________________________ 



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures  Page 4 of 6 

IV. BOARD CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: (Board Chair or designated Speaker)   
It is also important that the members of the Board of Adjustment consider and make 
sure that they do not have any conflicts of interest with serving as a member of the 
decision-making body for purposes of hearing and ruling on this particular case.  
Therefore, the following questions should be considered by each member and any 
potential conflicts should be voiced, discussed, and resolved if possible or otherwise 
result in recusal of any member with such a conflict by the other members of the Board. 

 

1. does any member of this body have any interest in the property or the application, or 
do they own property in close proximity to the subject property;  

2. does any member of this body stand to gain or lose any financial benefit as a result of 
the outcome of this hearing;  

3. does any member of this body feel they cannot hear and consider the application in a 
fair and objective manner;  

4. has any member of this body engaged in any ex parte communications with either 
proponents or opponents of the application, and, if so, I ask you to place on the record 
the substance of any such communications so that interested parties have the 
opportunity at this hearing to rebut the communications. 

5. Are there any members of the audience who wish to challenge on appearance of 
fairness grounds participation in the matter by any member of Council, including the 
reasons for the request? 

 

V. PARTY IDENTIFICATION/WITNESSES/OATH: (Board Clerk) 

At this time we will identify and swear in or affirm all of the parties and witnesses. 

A. Call for and ID Parties- name, address, for/against applicant 

B. Call for and ID Witnesses- name, address, for/against applicant 

C. All parties and witnesses should now stand and/or come forward to be sworn in or to 

affirm the truth of their testimony  [Administer the oath to all those who may testify, as 

a group] (“Do you swear [or affirm] that the evidence you shall give to the board in this 

action shall be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?”)  

If anyone refuses to be sworn (or affirm), then inform them their statements must not be 

treated as evidence on which to base a decision, but merely as arguments] 

 

VI. PRESENTATION OF CASE/EVIDENCE: 

A. County Staff Presentation of Case: Will County staff please come forward and describe 

the application being considered; and share the recommendation provided by staff 

and/or the Planning Board concerning the proposal?  

- [Commissioners should ask questions at this time] 

- [Cross Examination if applicable] 

 

B. Applicant: The applicant may come forward at this time and present their testimony 

and evidence to support the application if so desired.  Any specific written documents, 

surveys, pictures, or other evidence, and/or any expert witness testimony you would 

like to have considered should also be clearly identified and presented at this time.  



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures  Page 5 of 6 

- [Commissioners should ask questions at this time] 

- [Cross Examination if applicable] 

 

C. Other Legitimate Parties with Material Interest in the Case: (if applicable) may come 

forward at this time and present their testimony and evidence to support or oppose 

the application if so desired at this time.  Any specific written documents, surveys, 

pictures, or other evidence, and/or any expert witness testimony you would like to 

have considered should also be clearly identified and presented at this time. 

- [Commissioners should ask questions at this time] 

- [Cross Examination if applicable] 

 

D. Closing Statements and/or Rebuttals:  Are there any closing statements or any last 

rebuttal comments from: 

1. Staff 

2. Applicant 

3. Other Legitimate Parties 

 

E. Board Q&A:  Are there any final questions from the Board for any of the parties before 

beginning deliberations on a decision? 

 

  



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures  Page 6 of 6 

VII. DELIBERATION & DECISION: 

FIRST Review the applicable specific legal standard(s) again in Article 5(B) 

SECOND Collectively identify which facts or specific items of evidence (including testimony) 
were most important to determining whether the proposed special use of property 
met the applicable legal standard(s). 
 

[Specific facts/evidence which impacted your decision should be itemized and 
described briefly below] 

 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 

THIRD Collectively discuss whether any special conditions upon the proposed use of the 
property should be required in order for the applicant’s proposed special use to 
meet or better satisfy the applicable legal standard(s).  
 

[Specific conditions, if any, should be itemized and described briefly below] 
- 
 
- 
 
- 

FOURTH 
 

VOTE:  After careful and deliberate consideration of all the relevant facts and 
evidence presented in this matter, if you believe that the applicant: 

 
APPROVE 

or 

Generally met the applicable legal 
standards (or would meet them under 
certain conditions) 

MOTION TO APPROVE THE PERMIT* 
*(if applicable, describe any conditions 
in the motion)             or 

 
DENY 

Generally does NOT meet the applicable 
legal standards (or would not meet them 
even under certain conditions) 

MOTION TO DENY THE PERMIT 
 
 

Unless otherwise directed, staff will prepare a written order within five (5) business days reflecting the 
relevant findings of fact, conclusions of law, and final decision of the Board in this hearing.  The Clerk 
shall circulate a draft for signature approval by a majority of the Board members voting in this matter 
to grant or deny the permit.  After receiving enough signatures, the Order shall be certified and 
entered in the Board’s records as its “Final Order” in this matter.  The Clerk shall provide notices 
thereof as required by applicable law. 

VIII. MOTION TO ADJOURN THE PUBLIC HEARING 



































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:     August 7, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
WASHINGTON COUNTY JURY COMMISION 
 
The Clerk of Court has requested the re-appointment of Ms. Syble Spruill to the 
Washington County Jury Commission by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
Ms. Spruill has agreed to serve if appointed. 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:  August 7, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer, will discuss the enclosed budget transfers for 2023, 
budget transfers for 2024 and budget amendments for 2024 to the Board for 
approval/disapproval and information. (See attached.) 
 
 
 















































































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   9 
 
       DATE:     August 7, 2023 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
 Department Head Reports from June/July 2023 (see attached) 
 Statistics Reports from May/June 2023 (see attached) 

 
a)  NCACC Voting Delegate Designation 
 We received the following e-mail from the NCACC: 
 

Good morning, County Managers and Clerks to the Board, 
 
In order to capture voting delegate designations for the upcoming NCACC Annual 
Conference in August, we are asking your county to submit your voting delegate 
designation via this link. You will have the option to select one person to serve as the 
voting delegate and one person as an alternate, if that is your preference. Click here to 
indicate who will serve as your voting delegate for the NCACC Annual Conference. 
 
The NCACC’s 116th Annual Conference Business Session will be held in Wake County 
on Saturday, August 26, at 2 pm, with each county entitled to one vote on items that 
come before the membership, including the election of the NCACC Second Vice 
President. 
 
NCACC Constitution, Article VI: 
“On all questions, including the election of officers, each county represented shall be 
entitled to one vote, which shall be the majority expression of the delegates of that 
county.  The vote of any county in good standing may be cast by any one of its County 

https://2i4mk1jf64z.typeform.com/to/SFhkJtGg
https://2i4mk1jf64z.typeform.com/to/SFhkJtGg


Commissioners who is present at the time the vote is taken; provided, if no 
commissioner be present, such vote may be cast by another county official, elected or 
appointed, who holds elective office or an appointed position in the county whose vote 
is being cast and who is formally designated by the Board of County Commissioners. 
These provisions shall likewise govern district meetings of the Association.  A county in 
good standing is defined as one which has paid the current year’s dues.” 
 
Please submit your voting delegate designations by Monday, August 21, close of 
business. Should you have any questions, please contact Alisa Cobb at 
alisa.cobb@ncacc.org. 

 
All of the Commissioners are attending the NCACC Conference August 24-26 
in Raleigh.  The Board needs to choose a Voting Delegate this evening so the 
Clerk can get the information to the NCACC before the deadline. 
 
b) ABC 2023-2024 Proposed Annual Operating Budget 

The ABC Board is required by statute to send their budgets/amendments to 
the Board of Commissioner for information.  No action is needed.  (See 
attached). 
 

c) Discussion:  Agenda for Joint Meeting with the Plymouth Town Council 
The Plymouth Town Council would like to meet with Commissioners in a 
joint meeting on August 28. The Clerk has reserved the Cooperative 
Extension Conference Room for this meeting.  This Board needs to come 
up with an agenda for this meeting. The Clerk will be meeting with 
Plymouth Town Manager on August 16th to discuss what the Town would 
like as their agenda.  The hope is to merge the two agendas into one. 

 
d) Discussion:  Legislation on Allowance of Heavier Trucks 

New legislation is coming out regarding the allowance of heavier trucks on 
our roads.  There are other counties that are opposed to this along with our 
representatives.  Below are letters of support that Representative Don 
Davis’s Office drafted and would like the Commissioners to approve and 
send. (See below.) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:alisa.cobb@ncacc.org


 
 
 
 
August 7, 2023 
 
The Honorable Don Davis  
1123 Longworth House Office Building 
Washington, DC 20515 
 
Dear Congressman Davis,  
 
Special interests have been proposing legislation in favor of bigger tractor-trailer trucks 
such as H.R. 3372, which would create a “pilot project” that would allow any state to 
increase truck weights from 80,000 pounds to 91,000 pounds for up to 10 years on its 
interstates.  
 
This legislation alarms us because local and municipal governments already have 
difficulty maintaining public works budgets with limited capacity to raise revenue 
through fees and taxes, and with inflationary pressures, the costs of maintenance and 
replacement continues to grow. Adding more weight to tractor-trailers without additional 
braking capacity increases stopping distance, potentially turning a near-miss into a fatal 
accident.  
 
Recently, the Coalition Against Bigger Trucks (CABT), in conjunction with county 
officials with expertise in local infrastructure, undertook a comprehensive evaluation on 
the impact of heavier trucks on local bridges, those not on the National Highway System. 
This study fills in the gaps of the 2016 USDOT Comprehensive Truck Size and Weight 
Limits Study, which did not look at the impact of bigger trucks on local roads and 
bridges.  
 
Throughout North Carolina’s 1st congressional district, 119 local bridges would be 
unable to safely accommodate 91,000-pound trucks. Replacing those bridges would cost 
our taxpayers more than $60 million. We believe this is critical information policymakers 
need to know during any consideration of legislation that would increase truck size or 
weight.  
 
The Washington County board of County Commissioners that you take safety and 
infrastructure damage into consideration and oppose any attempts in Congress to 
increase the size of tractor-trailers, including HR 3372 and HR 2948. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Julius Walker, Jr., Chair 
Washington County Commissioner 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
August 7, 2023 
 
The Honorable Ted Budd 
304 Russell Senate Office Building 
Washington, DC 20515 
 
Dear Senator Budd,   
 
Special interests have been proposing legislation in favor of bigger tractor-trailer trucks 
such as H.R. 3372, which would create a “pilot project” that would allow any state to 
increase truck weights from 80,000 pounds to 91,000 pounds for up to 10 years on its 
interstates.  
 
This legislation alarms us because local and municipal governments already have 
difficulty maintaining public works budgets with limited capacity to raise revenue 
through fees and taxes, and with inflationary pressures, the costs of maintenance and 
replacement continues to grow. Adding more weight to tractor-trailers without additional 
braking capacity increases stopping distance, potentially turning a near-miss into a fatal 
accident.  
 
Recently, the Coalition Against Bigger Trucks (CABT), in conjunction with county 
officials with expertise in local infrastructure, undertook a comprehensive evaluation on 
the impact of heavier trucks on local bridges, those not on the National Highway System. 
This study fills in the gaps of the 2016 USDOT Comprehensive Truck Size and Weight 
Limits Study, which did not look at the impact of bigger trucks on local roads and 
bridges.  
 
Throughout North Carolina 1,482 local bridges would be unable to safely accommodate 
91,000-pound trucks. Replacing those bridges would cost our taxpayers more than 
$657,488,246. We believe this is critical information policymakers need to know during 
any consideration of legislation that would increase truck size or weight.  
 
The Washington County board of County Commissioners that you take safety and 
infrastructure damage into consideration and oppose any attempts in Congress to 
increase the size of tractor-trailers, including HR 3372 and HR 2948. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 



Julius Walker, Jr., Chair 
Washington County Commissioner 
 
 
August 7, 2023 
 
The Honorable Thom Tillis  
113 Dirksen Senate Office Building 
Washington, DC 20515 
 
Dear Senator Tillis,    
 
Special interests have been proposing legislation in favor of bigger tractor-trailer trucks 
such as H.R. 3372, which would create a “pilot project” that would allow any state to 
increase truck weights from 80,000 pounds to 91,000 pounds for up to 10 years on its 
interstates.  
 
This legislation alarms us because local and municipal governments already have 
difficulty maintaining public works budgets with limited capacity to raise revenue 
through fees and taxes, and with inflationary pressures, the costs of maintenance and 
replacement continues to grow. Adding more weight to tractor-trailers without additional 
braking capacity increases stopping distance, potentially turning a near-miss into a fatal 
accident.  
 
Recently, the Coalition Against Bigger Trucks (CABT), in conjunction with county 
officials with expertise in local infrastructure, undertook a comprehensive evaluation on 
the impact of heavier trucks on local bridges, those not on the National Highway System. 
This study fills in the gaps of the 2016 USDOT Comprehensive Truck Size and Weight 
Limits Study, which did not look at the impact of bigger trucks on local roads and 
bridges.  
 
Throughout North Carolina 1,482 local bridges would be unable to safely accommodate 
91,000-pound trucks. Replacing those bridges would cost our taxpayers more than 
$657,488,246. We believe this is critical information policymakers need to know during 
any consideration of legislation that would increase truck size or weight.  
 
The Washington County board of County Commissioners that you take safety and 
infrastructure damage into consideration and oppose any attempts in Congress to 
increase the size of tractor-trailers, including HR 3372 and HR 2948. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
Julius Walker, Jr., Chair 
Washington County Commissioner 
 
If approved, the Clerk will put these on the County’s letterhead for the Chair to send and 



she will send them out appropriately. 
 

e) Discussion:  ¼ cent Sales Tax Referendum 
    Commissioner Spruill requested this item be put on the agenda for discussion. 













 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
August 7, 2023 

Board of Commissioners’ In Person & Facebook Livestreamed Meeting 
 
 
Geographic Information Systems & Other Projects 
Richard Livingston 
 
The Washington County GIS Department is at the tail end of the planned transition to contracted 
GIS services. We have successfully handed off the requisite spatial data sets and built out 
processes for managing mapping changes and 911 addressing. I am currently focused on quality 
assurance as we transition to fully contracted services. Please let me know if you have any 
questions about this transition.  

 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
EMS STAFFING:   
The EMS Division has (2) Full Time Paramedic positions and (1) Basic EMT position available.  
The Transport Division has two Full Time EMT positions available. We are also accepting 
applications for part time positions.   An offer of employment has been made for a Basic EMT 
Position and we are in talks with a Paramedic moving to the Tyrrell area.  
  
OTHER SYSTEM BUSINESS:  
UNC PECC+ Program :  PECC coordinator Jessica Howery will be attending a summit in 
August.  
 
Duke RACE-CARS Trial Program:  Waiting for approval to provide AED’s for interested Fire 
Department’s.  4-Life training coming up at the library.  
 
EMS is staying very busy with increased call volumes including an increase in traumatic events.   
 

 



 

Join us in welcoming our newest full time employee, EMT Lindsey Robinson.  Lindsey lives in 
Williamston and recently completed her EMT training.   

 

Thank you for your continued support of EMS.   
 
 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
The recreation is good, we won the State Game Basketball tournament and now we are signing 
up for football ages 6-12.  We have had a min football camp, CPR, Concussion clinic and 
working on having a Heat clinic.  Our big football camp will be August 12 start at 9:00 am.   

 

Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
This month in elections, I have two new board members (Robert Cody and Joyce Satterthwaite). 
We all had mandatory training in Concord NC, on July 13,14 and 15th. I also have been 
training for the new Voter ID, which is coming soon. 
 
 
 



 

Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
 
Staffing: 
We are still in need of a part-time Financial Officer for the Regional Office. Please contact 
Director Judi Bugniazet on how to apply. 
 
Programming: 

• We have had a summer jammed-packed with programming! We would like to thank all 
of our Grassroots Artists and Summer Reading Presenters for their wonderful 
presentations! 

• Our Friday Movie Matinees will end 07/28/2023 with Disney’s “Encanto” showing at 
2:00 PM. 

• Our Summer Reading Program will end 08/02/2023 with Magician Gary Shelton 
performing at 2:00 PM. 

• The NC Symphony will host a FREE 30-Minute Storytime session on 08/08/2023 at 
11:30 AM; musical instruments will be on display and are able to be “played with” by 
participants. 

• Virtual Storytime sessions will resume 08/09/2023 after taking a summer hiatus. 
• Face-to-Face “Storytime with Miss Brandy” sessions are still ongoing; they are hosted 

EVERY WEDNESDAY morning at 10:30 AM. (Please call ahead if interested in 
attending so we can plan accordingly.) 

• WIP (Works in Progress) is a knitting/crocheting group hosted by Rita Asby that meets 
every Wednesday at NOON; please spread the word and attend! We would love to have 
you! 
 

Library and Community Happenings: 
• Our Little Libraries are still being accessed at Plymouth’s Mini Park, Creswell’s 

Barnyard Betsy’s, and Roper’s Washington County’s African-American Museum and 
Cultural Center – one will be appearing soon at Washington County Senior Center. 

• We are still collecting donations are actively selling books at our ongoing book sale. 
• We have had to enforce a stricter policy with patrons violating the use of our “cataloging 

computer” for other use.  
• Please monitor our Facebook for updates on changes in policy and future programming 

events.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
   

 



 

 

 
 
 



 

Veteran’s Service Officers Report 
Vacant 
 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. In June - the tax clerks – Christal and Hollie – handling the day-to-day 
processing of payments, handling phone calls and emails as they can but also 
work is being delegated to them. They continue to assist Darlene and Felesha.  

2. In June, filed the delinquent report for the Torrens (Registered Estates) 
properties in the Register of Deeds office, as required by NCGS.  

3. We continue to work every day with Zacchaeus Legal Services.  
4. Darlene continues to process enforced collections – wage garnishments, bank 

attachments, debt set-off. 
5. Mailed Sales Letters based on Deed transfers as required by NCGS.  
6. From New Construction review, added new pictures, verified that SWUFs were 

added to new residences and removed for residences that were removed (due to fire 
damage or demolition due to condition) 

7. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling adjustments, refunds, 
releases, and general questions regarding motor vehicles.  

8. Continue to verify PINs and complete Tax Certifications.  
9. We continue to get calls for Republic Services, we direct the taxpayer to the 

county’s website and Landfill. At times, the landfill calls us for verification of 
ownership of a property, for example, there is a new owner for a property and 
that person is going into the landfill but before they are allowed to dump their 
debris or trash, the landfill calls us to make sure they own the property at the 
address they have given.     

10. In June - Christal contacted delinquent taxpayers to get delinquent taxes paid.  
11. Darlene Fikes and I closed out FY 23. Emailed reports to the towns.  
12. The Statistical report was submitted. 
13. Present-Use Value correspondence was sent out for new transfers.  
14. Received our new copier/printer, thank you.  
15. In preparation for the tax bills, I had a couple of site visits that were not 

included in the appraiser’s new construction review.  
16. Processed the applications for exemptions – senior citizen, disability, disabled 

veterans.  
17. In July – worked on finalizing the new year set-up for tax bills. Sent the towns 

their reports. 
18. Lonnie Baker, our programmer for tax collection, died July 1st, there were a 

couple of issues that Darlene Fikes was able to fix. Thankfully, she has had 
some training in programming in our current software.  

19. Submitted information to Auditors as requested by them.  
20.  Had a message go out through Hyper Reach reminding everyone to pay their 

taxes in July to capture the 2% discount (I appreciate Connie’s assistance). Ran 
an ad in the Roanoke Beacon as a reminder too. 

21. Per NCGS, I completed the Settlement Report for the August Commissioner’s 
Meeting and for the town of Creswell’s Town Council meeting. 



 

Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 

June 2023 
 
Permits Issued    27  
Inspections completed   37    
App/Plan Review     4  
Consultations     3   -WC K-12 School with Dominion and Triple R   

          Cell tower provider for possibly 2 new towers  
         Lou Manring for downtown buildings   

  
Mutual Aid -Tyrrell County 5th, 9th, 21st, 27th  
Observed Floodplain area on the way to Tyrrell County June 27  
Worked Bear Festival – Fireworks – June 1, permitting; June 3 Inspections   
Ongoing work with Roper Creswell, and Plymouth for Community Rating System 
inspection which is due in August  
Vacation June 12 – 16  
Holiday June 19  
Cancelled Planning Board meeting scheduled in June due to vacation schedules  
June 28 – Roanoke Rapids – Mini Grids - Resiliency meeting with EM and Center for  

      Energy Education  
 
July 2023 
 

Permits Issued     20  
Special Use Request      1  - Verizon tower on 32S   
Inspections     37  
Review applications for permits               3  
Floodplain review      2  
Consult with Contractor -Red Door Homes  
Consult with new owner regarding asbestos  
Consult with Piedmont Natural Gas and EM1 RE: responder training  
7/4 Holiday  
7/3, 5, 6 -Bereavement Leave -   
7/10 – Administrative Day-completed CRS audit document  
7/12 – Department Head Meeting  
7/13-14 – Staff out of office  
7/20 – Planning Board meeting – referred Special Use Permit application  

Will hold Public Hearing on August 17, 2023 at 1:00pm in Roper  
7/21 – Inspector out of office  
7/24 – Staff with EM at Fire Commission meeting  

 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
No report submitted. 



 

Soil and Water 
Chris Respass 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
Landfill 
Mike Gray 
 
1. Land Clearing (L.C.) --- 44.54 
2. Const. & Demo. (C&D) --- 96.28 
3. Inert Debris (I.D.) ---- 41.06 
4. Scrap Metal --- 1.06 
5. Tires --- 12.00 
 
Total for the month is 389,880 lbs. = 194.94 Tons. 
 



 

Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 
Detention: 

 
No other report submitted. 
 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
   
June 2023 

1. Contact CopyPro – discuss if credit allowed for Toshiba copiers. CopyPro will sell to 3rd  
party vendor and send us check. Email PO to CopyPro. 

2. Get Dell quote and order laptop for County Manager office. 
3. June 1 NMAC install new 911 admin line on consoles. EdgeOne install board in 911 

recorder to fix issue with phone extension recording.   
4. Troubleshoot issue with Ricky Young’s vpn. 
5. Review 911 Grant Application with Anna Johnson. Contact Angie with 911 Board and 

Martin with Motorola with questions. Create binder for 911 Grant information. Send 
information to Curtis and Missy. 

6. Contact BrightSpeed to had long distance and hunting on new 911 admin line. 
7. Complete 911 Strategic Technology Plan FY23-28 for grant application. Review with 

Anna. Inform Anna she needs to update MOU for backup plan.  
8. Work with Missy on Sheriff Office Motorola order. Some items are on backorder. Teams  

meeting with Motorola, Missy, Charlie and myself. 
9. CopyPro copiers delivered/installed. Work on various issues. Toshiba copiers removed and 

removed drivers from server. 
10. Update and review O365 list. Review options for MFA. 
11. Migration of Exchange email accounts to Microsoft O365. Install local Office on 

computers. Setup MFA for all employees. Move mailboxes that need to be retained per  
State retention policy to pst files on filesvr. Update documentation. 

12. Make changes to email accounts as needed for O365. 
13. Install/setup HP printer in Detention Center. 
14. Install equipment for network upgrades necessary before VoIP installation. 
15. Received Motorola equipment to be installed in 911. Will replace borrowed equipment 

from Chowan County. 
 



 

16. Contact Shannon at UNC to discuss issues with subscription billing from NCDIT. Informed 
to request removal from invoice. Notify Missy. 

17. Add copier documentation to BaseCamp. 
18. Perform updates on Southern Bank check scanner. 
19. Review Keystone contract. 
20. Replace docking station on Facilities laptop. 
21. Setup Renee Collier on Senior Center computer. 
22. Contact Mediacom and BrightSpeed concerning changes to accounts that need to be made 

or VoIP installation. 
23. Make changes to users and permissions for access in Edmunds software. 
24. Setup Debbie Knieper on computer in County Manager’s office. 
25. Review CopyPro invoice with Missy. Contact CopyPro to have corrections made to 

invoice.  
26. Troubleshoot issue with MACS in Detention Center. 
27. Update instructions for Tax Year-End Close-Out. 
28. Attend Departmental meeting. 
29. Attend County Manager group meeting. 
30. Attend Commissioners meeting. 
31. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
32. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
33. Complete Weekly Activity Report for County Manager 
34. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

July 2023 

1. Assist Sherri with Tax Year-End Close-Out. Make changes to program to correct error. 
2. Troubleshoot issue with postage machine. 
3. Troubleshoot issue with CAD sheets not being received by EMS. 
4. Create various instructions for users on O365 and email to employees. 
5. Complete email clean up and updating documentation. 
6. Troubleshoot issue with Edmunds at Landfill. 
7. Request refresh postage machine quote from Independent Mailing and email to Missy. 

Place order when PO received and agreement signed. Check with Independent Mailing on 
maintenance contract paid – will it roll over to new postage machine - Yes. 

8. Troubleshoot issue with McDaniels in Detention Center. 
9. Troubleshoot Metered Network Warning on Mary Moscato laptop. Create instructions to  

correct and email to all employees. 
10. Troubleshoot issue with docking station on Facilities laptop – fan failure. Call Dell tech 

support – download firmware updates but did not work. Dell will send a replacement. 
11. Forward SU-Group agreement to Curtis and Missy. Update spreadsheet with amounts  

charged and department budget line to be charged. After agreement signed email to  
SU-Group. 

12. Multiple conversations with BrightSpeed concerning internet connections at Water Plant, 
Senior Center and Recreation. 

13. Work with Missy on SSG PHA for Board of Elections. Explain PHA to Dora. 



 

14. Document surplus equipment at Senior Center and Finance, remove hard drives from pc’s. 
Submit to Debbie for sale. 

15. Discuss with Anna presentation to the 911 Board that needs to be made for grant that will  
cover cost of remaining Motorola updates. Grant total requested: $100,461.61. Attend  
presentation on July 25th. 911 Board will send notification via email on September 8th. 

16. Complete Auditor Questionnaire and return to auditors. 
17. Training on O365 Admin. 
18. Add O365 documentation to BaseCamp. 
19. Assist Sherri in Tax billing process. 
20. Research issue with Board of Elections BrightSpeed internet bill increase. Discuss with  

BrightSpeed and corrections should be made. 
21. Review documentation on VoIP phones and make necessary changes. Contact Emily with 

VC3 to discuss. 
22. Troubleshoot issue with phones at Board of Elections. 
23. Troubleshoot issue with phones at Landfill. 
24. Vacation 7/24 – 7/28 
25. Research issue with phone system repair for Co-op Extension. 
26. Make access and permission changes to Edmunds Software. 
27. Attend Departmental meeting. 
28. Attend County Manager group meeting. 
29. Attend Commissioners meeting. 
30. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
31. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
32. Complete Weekly Activity Report for County Manager 
33. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

 
 
Senior Center 
Renee’ Collier 
 
I began with this office on June 16th, 2023. Before I began, Vanessa had taken at least 12 seniors 
to the Elder Abuse Awareness Walk hosted by the Albemarle Commission on June 9, 2023, in 
Elizabeth City. They also hosted a retirement party for Vanessa on June 15th.   
 
Since my first day, we celebrated Juneteenth with our group. This was my first celebration with 
the Seniors, and it was nice to see all races celebrating freedom together. Maria provided 
exercise and activities for our morning and afternoon groups, and Martha provided meals during 
the day and exercise at night. I filled in for a craft volunteer at the end of June and we painted 
wooden door hangers and picture frames. I will now be providing a craft program on the 
calendar each month along with Maria’s other planned activities.  
 
Entering into July, we began our recertification process efforts which will be for the next 2 years 
until we have our site visit. I met with staff to go over my expectations, plans and goals and 
asked for their input as well. We began collecting money for a trip to Elizabeth City coming up 
in August. We celebrated the Fourth of July with a cookout celebration and grilled out and staff 
brought sides. We have had and continue to have our regular programming throughout the 
month.  



 

 
Unfortunately, on June 19th , I came in to work to find the bathroom that connects to my office 
flooded with approx. .5-1 inch of water. It seems the previous night before someone from the 
Line Dance class left a faucet running in the bathroom, which has happened in the past, but this 
time the floor drain did not function correctly, leading to the flooding. Maintenance was called 
and the County Manager was notified. Maintenance came out and pulled the standing water from 
the floor and provided a dehumidifier and fans. We came back after the weekend and the floor 
was dried and my computer was plugged in and now working.   
 
Martha is out for the rest of the month on vacation, so Maria and I are holding down the fort. We 
had an International Self-Care Day with Staff as well as regular monthly programming. We are 
looking forward to August!  
 
 
Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 

1. Replaced 7 runway lights.  
2. QT POD still working good. 
3. Repairing ground height around duct units. 
4. Filling in runway/taxiway washouts from rainfalls. 
5. Mowing lots of grass. 
6. Waiting to be branded.  
7. Cleaning fuel farm. 

 
8. Future Projects:   

 Replace Av/gas hose and jet fuel hose                                                 
 Clean debris around perimeter of airport                                                
 Clean logging road overgrowth                                                                                                                                 
 Replace fuel pump night light at fueling station, about 20’ tall                                                           
 Runway:  

o Need to cut grass north end, south end of runway, entire airport. Need to  
cut around runway and taxiway lights. Will have to remove trees north end 
and south end of runway RPZ zone to meet FAA safety standards.  

o Remove rocks/stones around taxiway to improve mowing and save wear 
and tear on airport equipment.                                                              

o Repair Beacon   
o Repair/replace PAPI lights (precision approach path indicator)         
o Repair/replace REIL (runway end identifier lights)                             

 
And other items that are not on this list.                                

 
 
 
 



 

Facility Services 
Ricky Young 
 
Unfinished Business: 

• The fire alarm at Board of Elections has been giving false signals from the duct 
detector.  Working with the Alarm Company we have possibly fixed the issue.  We are 
running a test to verify it is working properly. 

• The Emergency Management Building has been completed and ready for 
Probation/Parole. 
 

Maintenance: 
• We have completed 86 work orders. 
• We have begun repairing some of the walls in the courthouse. 
• The Power Company is in the process of replacing the old power lines and transformer 

at the Health Department.  No disruptions are planned. 
• The holes in the parking lot at the Heath Department have been repaired. 

 
Upcoming Projects: 

• The back doors at the Board of Elections need replacing. 
• Continue with the PM schedule of HVAC systems. 
• Replacing a floor in a storage shed at the Health Department. 
• Paint the parking lot lines at Department of Human Services. 

 
 
MTW Health District 
Wes Gray 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

56 62 44 38 46 36 40 35 42 45 57 52 553 553
Male 40 42 29 22 29 19 21 15 21 20 32 28 318
Female 3 4 4 5 6 6 4 9 6 7 8 8 70
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 12 15 11 11 11 11 14 10 14 17 16 15 157
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 6 6
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HYDE

MARTIN

SMCP
NORTHAMPTON                        Male

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

DETENTION 
FY22-23

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN 0

0

388

0

0

2

0

0

157

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Total Incarcerations  in FY
(includes all Counties)



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

WC Dispatched 138 134 130 151 144 166 151 146 163 1323
WC Transported 98 101 91 106 98 104 113 95 110 916
WC Refusals 40 33 39 45 46 62 38 51 53 407

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 6 2 3 1 1 0 0 1 0 14
SNF to Doctors 85 65 98 136 88 95 87 108 131 893
Hospital Discharges 10 21 12 19 10 6 14 7 12 111
EMS Back Up 1 6 6 3 1 7 10 3 7 44

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

TC Dispatched 60 61 69 71 54 50 62 49 55 531
TC Transported 49 41 48 44 36 38 43 25 41 365
TC Refusals 11 20 21 27 18 12 19 24 14 166

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
HC Transported 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
HC Refusals 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY22-23

Washington County

Tyrrell County

EMS Pickups FY23

1323

916

407



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals
Building $1,355.00 2,150.00$          3,014.54$   2,374.60$   1,130.00$   2,912.12$   2,638.24$   2,233.00$   2,145.00$   5,479.00$   3,250.00$   5,402.54$         $34,084.04
Zoning 75.00$      25.00$         100.00$       75.00$         175.00$       125.00$       100.00$       50.00$         175.00$       100.00$       175.00$      $1,175.00

Reinspect 225.00$    -$             150.00$       725.00$       -$             75.00$         375.00$       175.00$       450.00$       150.00$      $2,325.00
SWUF $150.00 125.00$       250.00$       -$             -$             100.00$       -$             -$             225.00$       175.00$       150.00$      $1,175.00

HO Recovery 
Fee $0.00 10.00$         -$             10.00$         -$             -$             -$             10.00$         10.00$         20.00$        $60.00

Total $1,805.00 $2,300.00 $3,524.54 $3,174.60 $1,315.00 $3,137.12 $2,813.24 $2,658.00 $2,320.00 $5,889.00 $3,985.00 $5,897.54 $38,819.04

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY22-23

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

$3,000.00

$4,000.00

$5,000.00

$6,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY22-23) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

88%

3%
6% 3%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building

Zoning

Reinspect

SWUF

HO Recovery
Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 5809
Unduplicated Attendees 54 68 50 242 169 185 88 76 932
New Particpants 2 2 1 1 3 9
Center-Sponsored Events 265 261 105 224 303 548 323 310 2339
Special Events 26 40 14 65 98 52 145 114 554
Caregiver's Support Group 5 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 34
Exercise Room 24 51 15 33 39 29 48 35 274
 Fitness Workout 6 15 26 30 52 26 155
Yoga 16 12 12 20 12 10 5 3 90
Chair Exercise 65 70 46 62 64 34 76 60 477
Beginner's Line Dance 14 21 18 39 39 17 19 18 185
Line Dance with Linda 27 31 37 40 62 42 33 29 301
Crafts With Sandra Lee 14 12 12 14 15 11 17 11 106
Sewing with Geraldine 16 22 16 27 22 22 27 14 166
Drop-in Activities 19 12 31
Computer Classes 29 30 0 0 59
Bridge 16 14 18 15 20 14 97
MEAL DATA 1013 1139 934 911 874 658 749 829 934 649 0 0 8690
Congregate Meals Served 220 262 218 185 173 115 142 168 226 168 1877
Home-Delivered Meals Served 793 877 716 726 701 543 607 661 708 481 6813
Congregate Meals-Pick-Ups 0
CONTRIBUTION DATA 438.50$  532.19$  379.05$  169.65$ ####### ####### 289.00$  310.85$  532.39$ -$  -$  -$  4,608.53$  
Congregate Meals 148.50$  132.19$  39.05$    54.65$   91.90$   129.00$  50.85$    62.39$   708.53$     
Home-Delivered Meals 155.00$  215.00$  270.00$  225..00 125.00$ 810.00$ 70.00$    145.00$  265.00$ 2,055.00$  
Activity Fees 125.00$  85.00$    70.00$    115.00$ 105.00$ 60.00$   90.00$    115.00$  205.00$ 970.00$     
Donations 10.00$    100.00$  565.00$ 200.00$ 875.00$     

SENIOR CENTER
FY22-23

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000
Meals Served (FY22-23)

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

48%

11%1%

6%

3%
2%

10%

4%

6%

2%
3%

1% 1%

2%

Senior Center Activities (FY22-23) Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Group

Exercise Room

 Fitness Workout

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Beginner's Line Dance

Line Dance with Linda

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Sewing with Geraldine

Drop-in Activities

Computer Classes

Bridge



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                      
Current Year Tax 898,210.32$      2,292,012.84$   404,187.42$      223,827.03$   361,823.03$   1,110,348.78$   1,091,162.57$   84,341.25$     179,886.13$   94,596.54$     70,622.10$    144,511.74$    6,955,529.75$                     
Current Yr Discount (16,983.97)$       (32,457.61)$       (600.68)$             -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                 (50,042.26)$                         
Current Year Penalty 107.78$              2,564.03$           516.33$              218.50$          127.82$          3,821.16$           1,645.99$           56.46$            405.62$          636.90$          2,312.37$      32.63$             12,445.59$                           
Current Year Interest -$                    -$                    -$                    554.41$          -$                -$                    3,831.19$           2,388.03$       6,412.70$       5,262.46$       3,198.32$      5,061.87$        26,708.98$                           Oct Int - Def Tax Pmt
Watershed Tax Current 
Yr 10,162.47$         27,388.25$         4,764.97$           2,666.75$       3,961.14$       13,162.78$         12,982.50$         1,017.57$       2,210.97$       1,436.01$       583.13$          974.90$           81,311.44$                           
Watershed Discount (203.16)$             (387.62)$             (7.00)$                 -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                 (597.78)$                               
Watershed Penalty 1.24$                  30.56$                6.09$                  1.11$               1.17$               40.09$                18.08$                0.72$               4.20$               32.46$            0.19$              0.42$               136.33$                                
Watershed Interest -$                    -$                    -$                    6.41$               -$                -$                    40.19$                27.83$            75.75$            253.41$          610.36$          433.75$           1,447.70$                             Oct Int - Def Tax Pmt
Prior Year Tax 44,247.58$         89,391.99$         42,863.52$         33,593.45$     42,599.81$     25,468.87$         46,974.51$         28,359.63$     24,187.74$     22,462.54$     17,016.72$    7,008.85$        424,175.21$                         
Prior Year Penalty 154.44$              72.04$                12.85$                58.08$            33.73$            70.85$                1,149.64$           20.80$            95.82$            332.79$          109.50$          12.98$             2,123.52$                             
Prior Year Interest 4,028.32$           8,724.90$           5,215.11$           3,961.82$       13,239.58$     3,192.96$           6,444.00$           7,351.02$       4,600.13$       4,352.45$       7,030.94$      1,847.59$        69,988.82$                           
Prior Year Watershed 378.70$              590.37$              306.97$              265.82$          245.71$          111.99$              460.53$              194.44$          253.03$          210.12$          249.35$          77.85$             3,344.88$                             
Prior Year WS Penalty 1.69$                  0.91$                  0.33$                  0.88$               0.44$               0.53$                  1.72$                  0.27$               1.20$               4.18$               6.94$              0.21$               19.30$                                  
Prior Year WS Interest 333.37$              468.29$              271.88$              289.19$          364.36$          177.76$              390.63$              311.07$          397.52$          295.03$          364.40$          120.84$           3,784.34$                             
Bad Checks -$                    -$                    (538.54)$             (1,425.85)$      -$                -$                    (16,503.95)$       -$                (1,651.31)$      (447.56)$         -$                -$                 (20,567.21)$                         
Prepayments 520.18$              3,572.47$           3,255.73$           3,081.94$       2,834.72$       2,578.00$           4,024.04$           6,213.21$       10,096.17$     6,519.65$       8104.69 22,233.47$      73,034.27$                           

TOTAL 940,958.96$      2,391,971.42$   460,254.98$      267,099.54$   425,231.51$   1,158,973.77$   1,152,621.64$   130,282.30$   226,975.67$   135,946.98$   110,209.01$  182,317.10$   7,582,842.89$                     

Initiated 1 5 0 9 10 0 0 0 36 61
Amount 1,338.48$           3,763.76$           -$                    4,187.72$       8,832.11$       -$                    -$                    $0 $252,195 268,978.37$                         
Satisfied/Cancelled 0 0 0 2 7                      0 0 0 5 14
Amount -$                    -$                    -$                    787.64$          4,174.69$       -$                    -$                    $0 $74,761 79,723.62$                           

*
76,269.23 93,475.19$         77,088.65$     65,226.07 $76,396.96 72,306.44 75,682.14 87,132.94$     86,682.81 75,503.36$    785,763.79$                         

 -$                                      
Billed Current Yr 1,173,600.00$   1,173,600.00$                     
Collected Current Yr 171,230.20$      329,298.44$      73,561.83$         54,369.74$     69,541.33$     164,851.90$      105,240.78$      33,899.24$     65,839.69$     43,997.14$     22,772.11$    14,698.38$      1,149,300.78$                     
Bad Checks -$                    -$                    (300.00)$             (340.00)$         -$                -$                    (903.57)$             -$                (300.00)$         (2.44)$             -$                -$                 (1,846.01)$                            

TOTAL 171,230.20$      329,298.44$      73,261.83$         54,029.74$     69,541.33$     164,851.90$      104,337.21$      33,899.24$     65,539.69$     43,994.70$     22,772.11$    14,698.38$      1,147,454.77$                     

Billed Current Yr -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                 -$                                      
Collected Current Yr -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                50.40$             50.40$                                  June Pmt is a Prepayment
Prior Yrs Collected -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                 -$                                      

Collected Current Yr 8,733.79$           62,366.75$         20,645.48$         11,311.92$     15,122.66$     47,021.58$         15,204.97$         1,106.23$       4,546.99$       1,064.37$       651.60$          21.20$             187,776.34$                         

Creswell Levy 3,564.64$           22,463.38$         14,258.93$         1,581.06$       3,605.24$       34,264.36$         21,193.34$         1,760.23$       1,910.01$       1,836.00$       1,106.86$      2,157.50$        107,544.05$                         
1,124,487.59$   2,899,575.18$   661,896.41$      411,110.91$   578,726.81$   1,481,508.57$   1,365,663.60$   242,730.14$   386,105.30$   269,524.86$   210,242.94$  199,244.58$   9,830,816.90$                     

Tax and Tag 
Solid Waste Fees

TAX
FY22-23

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

Drainage Fees -    

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD 
TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 0 1187 1165 1129 1039 1062 982 935 0 0 0 0 7499
Law Enforcement 927 894 874 796 801 725 685 5702

Animal Control 88 126 79 71 63 86 81 594
EMS 172 145 176 172 198 171 169 1203

Reported Incidents 62 54 50 52 57 47 45 34 21 28 450
Total Arrests 14 16 11 10 11 5 13 0 3 10 0 0 93

Misdemeanor Arrests 5 6 9 8 5 4 4 0 3 0 44
Felony Arrests 9 10 2 2 6 1 9 0 0 10 49

Total Papers Served 64 79 66 75 48 36 70 46 81 33 0 0 598
Criminal Papers Served 10 2 0 3 3 1 3 4 21 3 50

Civil Papers Served 54 77 66 72 45 35 67 42 60 30 548
Total Papers Outstanding 15 27 32 16 20 16 53 40 34 24 0 0 277
Criminal Papers Outstanding 7 0 0 2 2 2 1 0 3 3 20

Civil Papers Outstanding 8 27 32 14 18 14 52 40 31 21 257
Gun Permits Issued 23 18 16 18 39 29 22 11 20 196
Conceals Pending 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 2 0 0 8

Concealed Permits Issued 21 27 17 21 23 18 26 20 29 9 211

SHERRIFF
FY22-23

76%

8%

16%

Dispatched Calls (FY22-23)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

Gun Permits (FY22-23)

Conceals Pending Concealed Permits Issued

450

44 49 50

548

20

257

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

YTD TOTALS

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY22-23)

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in 
million gallons) 7656 7432 8508 6369 6257 6428 8930 7660 6210 7022 7477 8956

88,905

Water Billed  FY 22-23 (in 
million gallons) 7707 7855

8266 6766 7766 7706 6657 6814 7014 6519 7560 80,630

Base Charges 65,364$      65,388$    65,292$    65,292$    65,268$  65,316$  65,099$  65,147$    65,219$    65,291$      65,195$       717,871$        
Consumption Charges 48,516$      50,505$    55,159$    38,779$    48,932$  49,049$  37,856$  39,481$    41,171$    35,594$      47,047$    492,089$        
Reconnecton Charges 1,785$        2,205$      1,645$      1,715$      1,470$    1,365$    1,785$    1,575$      1,435$      1,785$        1,365$       18,130$          

 Number of Abatements 
13 21

23 21 14 15 27 8 9 14  165                  

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 1,547.00$  2,697$      

3,146$      3,452$      1,794$    1,274$    3,874$    566$         1,092$      1,417$        20,858.50$     

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons) 13.9 15.6

14.5 14.5 12 12 12 11 12 11 15.300 18.100 161.559

Number of Customers 2657 2658 2654 2654 2653 2655 2652 2654 2657 2660 2656 29,210
New taps 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 3 0 1 6
Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$    4,844.65$  4,844.65$  4,844.65$  $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $4,844.65 4,844.65$  4,844.65$  4,844.65$    4,844.65$      53,291.15$            

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY22-23

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison
 

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 22-23 (in million gallons)



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Limbs, Brush & Leaves 72.14 51.92 62.47 59.7 80.46 77.68 106.63 69.86 69.54 76.43 95.58 87.95 910.36
Inert Debris 3.32 10.77 35.74 11.96 12.35 4.35 113.24 0 3.54 26.22 28.35 2.27 252.11
Scrap Metal 0.53 5.97 0.77 0.96 0.13 0.13 0.80 0.22 1.37 0.00 1.18 1.54 13.60
C&D 83.97 155.33 38.92 101.80 31.55 21.43 214.27 890.59 128.8 87.47 141.54 82.87 1,978.54
Tires 4.09 2.90 4.54 4.15 8.6 5.68 12.19 5.43 7.04 4.86 8.25 5.76 73.49

LANDFILL  (in tons)

FY 22-23

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Landfill Collections in Tons 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
   
       DATE:     August 7, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
A Closed Session has been scheduled pursuant to NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-
client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 



DRAFT  

 

                       
 

June 5, 2023 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
June 5, 2023, at 6:00 PM in person and using ZOOM for Facebook Live Streaming in the 
Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, 
Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were present.  Also 
present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett 
and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 

Chair Walker called the meeting to order. Chair Walker gave the invocation and 
Commissioner Keyes led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:   
 
Commissioner John Spruill made a motion to approve the Agenda for tonight’s 

meeting.  Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
a) Approval of Minutes of May 1 & 15, 2023 
b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents  
c) JCPC Certification Standards 
d) Washington County JCPC Membership 
e) Riverlight Transit Title VI Policy 
f)    Harvest Beams Letter of Support 
g) Roper Volunteer Fire Department’s Application for Renovation Funding Letter of 

Support 
h) Water System Engineering Agreement 
i)  TTA Bylaws (re-stated) 

 
 Items discussed:  Commissioner Phelps stated that Items C&D needed to have the WCS 
Superintendent’s name changed. 

 
 Commissioner Spruill said on Item G he has no comment since he is the President and 
Fire Chief of Roper’s Volunteer Fire Department.   
  
 Commissioner Spruill stated on Item H to make sure that the drawings are provided. 

 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  

Commissioner Keyes seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
  
 PUBLIC FORUM:  Mr. Lance Swindell, 116 Adams Street, Washington County Emergency 
Management Coordinator said to offer your support and appreciation to any first responder. Every local 
Fire Department has lowered their insurance rates, but their volunteer rosters are getting shorter. 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER:  Chair Walker recognized Ms. Darlene Harrison, 
Delinquent Tax Coordinator as Employee of the Quarter for March 2023.  Chair Walker said his 
employee has been with the county for 15 years. She was hired on May 6, 2008.  Her first 
position was Property Tax Clerk. She held this position until December 15, 2013, when she was 
promoted to Delinquent Tax Clerk Coordinator on December 16, 2013. She also functions as the 
Tax Administrator Assistant. 
 
 During the past quarter the Tax Office lost a part-time employee.  This employee stepped 
up and has taken over most of the responsibilities of the part-time position. She has also taken 
time to train others to assist with those additional responsibilities. She has shouldered the 
responsibility of seeing that these jobs are completed. She worked with the County’s Assistant 
Assessor with the County’s internal audit of the Business Personal Property listings this year. 
She attended a class on Personal Property Appraisal and Assessment in an effort to learn more 
about how the assessment side of the Tax Office should work.  
 
She also worked diligently to keep up her work as Delinquent Tax Coordinator/Deputy Tax 
Collector, this includes debt setoff, bankruptcies, foreclosures, garnishments, and attachments. 
She did all of this with a positive attitude and without question. She knew it had to be done so 
she did it. She is a very valuable asset to the Tax Office and very deserving of being Washington 
County’s Employee of the Quarter—Ms. Darlene Harrison! 
 

Chair Walker said Mr. Harrison will receive a Certificate and a check for $50 along with 
having her picture in the County Administration Building. 

 
BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW:  

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to convene as the Board of Equalization and 

Review.  Commissioner Keyes seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator stated there were no appeals as of today. 

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to adjourn the Board of Equalization & 

Review.  Commissioner Keyes seconded; motion carried unanimously.  
 
 PUBLIC HEARING ON EDDIE SMITH DRAINAGE DISTRICT:    Mr. Curtis Potter, 
CM/CA & Mr. Cameron Birtcher, LNFC gave the Board some background on how this came 
about.  
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to open the public hearing.  Commissioner 
Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously.   

 
Mr. Potter told the Commissioners there was information in the Commissioners’ 

packages and a resolution in front of them. 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-021 
CONFIRMING PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL & DEFINING FINAL 

ASSESSMENTS FOR 



DRAFT  

 

EDDIE SMITH SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 
N.C.G.S. ARTICLE 9, CHAPTER 153A 

 
 WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a Preliminary 
Assessment Resolution number 2023-011 on March 6, 2023 which describes in general terms the 
proposed newly formed special assessment district and said description is hereby incorporated by 
reference; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a Final 
Assessment Resolution number 2023-019 on May 1st, 2023 re-creating and establishing such a 
newly formed special assessment district known as the “Eddie Smith Special Assessment 
District”; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the basis for assessments of the new special assessment district shall be 
made pursuant to NCGS 153A-186(b)(4) as to cropland and forestland only, as it is deemed 
cropland and forestland will be the land benefitted by the project.  All cropland will be assessed 
at an equal rate per dollar of valuation, as shown on the County tax records.  All forestland will 
be assessed at an equal rate per dollar of valuation, as shown on the County tax records.  The 
territory benefited is shown as the shaded area on the attached Exhibit A, and is generally 
described as follows: 

 
Generally, Bounded on the North by U.S. Highway #64, on the West by lands of 
Tyson and others to and along C Canal, thence on the South by Pungo Lake; 
thence Easterly by Allen Road and Lake Phelps; thence a Northeasterly course 
from Lake Phelps to Woodley Canal and along Woodley Canal Northwestwardly 
to the Scuppernong River; thence Northwestwardly to U.S. Highway #64; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the Board’s intent that one-hundred percent of all costs, including 

County administrative costs incurred in implementing the newly formed district will be assessed 
against the benefitted cropland and timberland as they are shown in the records of the 
Washington County Tax Collector; and  
  

WHEREAS, notice of the Final Assessment Resolution, along with notice of the 
publication of a Preliminary Assessment Roll (including the basis for assessments being 
established as $0.12 per acre of woodland, and $0.35 per acre of cropland), along with notice of 
a public hearing to approve the preliminary roll was provided to all relevant owners pursuant to 
NCGS § 153A-194; and 

 
WHEREAS, NCGS §153A-195 provides in relevant part: “At the public hearing the 

board of commissioners shall hear all interested persons who appear with respect to the 
preliminary assessment roll. At or after the hearing, the board shall annul, modify, or confirm 
the assessments, in whole or in part, either by confirming the preliminary assessments against 
any lot, parcel, or tract described in the preliminary assessment roll or by cancelling, 
increasing, or reducing the assessments as may be proper in compliance with the basis of 
assessment. If any property is found to be omitted from the preliminary assessment roll, the 
board may place it on the roll and make the proper assessment.  

When the board confirms assessments for a project, the clerk shall enter in the minutes 
of the board the date, hour, and minute of confirmation. From the time of confirmation, each 



DRAFT  

 

assessment is a lien on the property assessed of the same nature and to the same extent as the 
lien for county or city property taxes, under the priorities set out in G.S. 153A-200. After the 
assessment roll is confirmed, the board shall cause a copy of it to be delivered to the county tax 
collector for collection in the same manner (except as provided in this Article) as property 
taxes.” ; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners did in fact confirm and 

approve the Preliminary Assessment Roll on June 5th, 2023 after a public hearing as required by 
law. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED AND ORDERED, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the estimated costs of maintaining the Eddie Smith Special Assessment District for 
the first fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30th, 2024 is estimated to be 
approximately $6,583.81, and thereafter shall be based upon the budget determination 
made by the board during the annual budget process for each subsequent fiscal year 
during an initial “budget period” established for maintaining the project pursuant to 
NCGS 153A-204.1 which shall be established as ten (10) years, beginning July 1, 2023 
and ending June 30, 2033. 
 

2. That the assessments for the estimated costs of improving and maintaining the Eddie 
Smith Special Assessment District (primarily intended to be used for maintaining the 
Eddie Smith Canal itself) shall be billed to all district landowners, together with their 
respective ad valorem tax bills each year, beginning with the 2023 ad valorem tax bills 
due on September 1, 2023, and prior to such maintenance costs being incurred.  Such 
assessments shall become a lien upon said lands upon initial assessment.  No assessments 
shall be held in abeyance. 
 

Adopted this the _____ day of June, 2023. 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
ATTEST:   
     
__________________________________________                       (COUNTY SEAL) 
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC,  
Clerk to the Board 

 
 

Commissioner Johnson discussed the prices on the land and asked if each person is 
charged .47 cent (total)? Mr. Potter said they would be charged either cropland or wooded (not 
both).  It is in addition to property taxes for those individuals. 
 

Commissioner Spruill said in the package they were given numbers that don’t seem to 
add up. Mr. Potter said he thinks that the map is wrong—has the wrong acreage.  That should 
have been corrected.  He apologized for it not being correct. The correct number of acres should 
be the assessment roll, not the map.  
 



DRAFT  

 

Mr. Guy Davenport, 63 White Rd., Creswell, has a lot of history with this district.   He 
gave the Board some of that history. He would like to see some of the wording stricken on the 
resolution. Mr. Potter said staff would agree that the assessment will only clear that one canal 
and the resolution will be changed.  
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to close the public hearing.  Commissioner 
Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Mr. Potter discussed the information below. 



DRAFT  

 

 



DRAFT  

 

 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve preliminary assessment roll for the 
Eddie Smith Special Assessment District.  Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve striking the language 
recommended by Mr. Guy Davenport regarding Eddie Smith Special Assessment District 
funds only serving the one canal—the Eddie Smith Canal.  Commissioner Phelps seconded; 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve Resolution 2023-021 Confirming 
Preliminary Assessment Roll & Defining Final Assessments for Eddie Smith Special 
Assessment District with the modification made tonight.  Commissioner Phelps seconded; 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING:  WASHINGTON COUNTY FY24 BUDGET 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to open the public hearing on the 
Washington County FY24 Budget Recommendation.  Commissioner Keyes seconded; 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

Mr. Potter stated there was a memo in their package under Item 6, the Budget Ordinance.  
There were some additions, and they are summarized in the memo.  
  

Commissioner Johnson asked if the van was purchased for recreation.  Mr. Potter said the 
County is waiting for it.  All vehicles are on backorder and there are no reliable timetables for 
delivery. Commissioner Johnson wanted to ask Ms. Wilkins a couple of questions about the 
group that came in and assessed the Tax Office. Commissioner Johnson asked if the 
Commissioners are supposed to appoint a tax appraiser.  Ms. Wilkins said the County has a 
contract with an outside appraiser; however, she is the appraiser on staff. Commissioner Johnson 
asked how long it took the group to conduct the assessment.  Ms. Wilkins said they came in for a 
day and sent in their recommendations a few weeks later. Ms. Wilkins said she did ask them to 
expedite their recommendations so it could get in the budget. 
 

Commissioner Keyes thanked staff for all their hard work and feels they deserve the 
COLA. She said she knows how hard they work. 
 

Commissioner Phelps asked about the .85 cent tax rate. Mr. Potter explained that it’s .84 
cent for property tax and .1 cent for watershed tax. 
 

Commissioner Spruill stated he had a few comments.   
 On Page 7 of the breakdown on the budget message, it talks about moving the 

$400+K to the pension fund.  Is it wise to make that transfer without possibly 
needing money for the school or Aviation Building?  Mr. Potter stated that the 
fund balance is strong enough to withstand that transfer.  The County could 
borrow from it if necessary.   

 Item #4 fire protection—he’s a member of the Roper VFD and hears of their 
struggles and other fire departments.  They are all bound by the State NFT1901 



DRAFT  

 

which states their truck needs to be 15 years or less.  All our Fire Departments are 
maintaining their trucks to the best of their abilities. All of them have trucks from 
16 – 37 years old.  Operating costs have gone up for all the departments too.  The 
County needs to maintain the current level of budget for fire departments or look 
at avenues to help these Fire Departments with large purchases.  
 
Mr. Potter said this year has a special $40K in the CIP for a well for Creswell and 
they are not going to be able to spend it, so it can be put back in the budget.  
 
Commissioner Keyes said she will try to procure additional funds for Fire 
Departments if she can. 
 

 Item # 5, page 8, line item F--when can the County apply for PARTF grant?  Mr. 
Potter said any year, but the more we save in the budget the more we can apply 
for.  It has a dollar-for-dollar match. 
 

 Contingency--is that what we usually put in?   
 

Mr. Potter said yes.  Ms. Dixon said it can build at the end of the year from 
interest in accounts.  The $188K in there now is helpful at year end for closeout. 
Mr. Potter said there is a statute that says it can’t be more than a certain amount of 
the budget. 
 

 Funds for landfill--is that enough?   
 
Mr. Potter said he put a lot of thought into this and it will be barely enough to 
tread water.  It is our weakest fund next to EMS. 
 

 Commissioner Spruill said we asked for an increase in water.   
 

Mr. Potter said this is a stopgap to help absorb the rising chemical costs. We will 
be doing a rate study to see what the future holds. 
 

 EMS contract with Tyrrell--does this cover what we do for them?   
 
Mr. Potter said we need to look over their contract again.  We did this 2 years ago 
and there was an increase. 
   

 Is Transport bringing in money?   
 
Mr. Potter said that treads water.  
 

 Page 12, WCS—regarding the payment we have to make this year.  How are we 
allocating this money? 
 
Mr. Potter said look on Page 13, it’s coming out of Fund 21. 

 
 Page 14--we need to pursue the ¼ cent referendum.   



DRAFT  

 

Mr. Potter said we have done this 3 times in the last 10 years.  It can only be 
voted on in the primary election so it can get in the budget. Mr. Potter said we did 
spend money on educating the public but will need help from the Commissioners.  
 

 Page 15—DSS 
 

Ms. Dixon said it’s for items paid for by DSS. 
 

 Tab 14…increase in salary.  
 
Mr. Potter explained it. 

 
 Tab 46--fee schedule…only sees changes to the water/landfill.   

 
Mr. Potter said a few things came out of Planning also, so yes that’s correct. 
 

 Tab 47…sees vehicles, but no equipment.   
 
Ms. Dixon said she has a fixed asset schedule she can give the Commissioners. 
 

 Tab 49…re: COLA…is ours comparative to the other counties across the State?    
 

Mr. Potter explained that he asked staff to check with surrounding counties in 
similar size to ours.  The info did show a range of salaries, but we are not far off 
from other counties and are even ahead in some of them. 

 
Ms. Sandra Floyd, 30 Golden Lane, Roper asked if there was any money appropriated for 

the Animal Shelter.  It needs new fencing. She thanked the Commissioners for the new sink and 
overhead fan.   
 

Mr. Potter said there is money in the budget for replacing the fence and or for part-time 
help. 
 

Mr. Lloyd Jones asked if recycling was in the budget. 
 
Mr. Potter said we are in a 5-year cycle with our trash contract so it will not be in there 

this year. 
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to close the public hearing on the Washington 
County FY24 Budget Recommendation.  Commissioner Keyes seconded; motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE WASHINGTON COUNTY FY24 BUDGET:   Mr. Potter 
went over the following information. 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Budget Ordinance for the 

Washington County FY24 Budget with the $40K put back in for the Creswell well, 
excluding the Fire Department Budget.   Commissioner Johnson asked how money was 
figured in Elections. Mr. Potter said it was for two part-time people. It would be up to Ms. Bell 
to manage their time.  Mr. Potter said it was a negotiated budget. Commissioner Spruill would 
modify the motion for the Board to vote on everything except the Fire Departments. (The motion 
was amended.) Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion  carried unanimously.  

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve Fire Departments budget and 

excuse Commissioner Spruill from voting.  Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion  carried 
4 – 0 with Commissioner Spruill excused from voting. 
  
 BOARDS & COMMITTEES:   
 
 WASHINGTON COUNTY DSS BOARD 
 
The Washington County DSS Board had requested that the Board of Commissioners appoint 
Ann Keyes to the DSS Board. 
 
Ms. Keyes has agreed to serve if appointed. 
 
 Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the appointment of Ms. Ann Keyes to the 
Washington County DSS Board. Commissioner Johnson seconded; motion  carried unanimously.  
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ Agenda Package. 

 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the budget transfers/amendments 

as presented.  Commissioner Keyes seconded; motion  carried unanimously. 
 
RESO 2023-020 REMOVING CERTAIN OBSOLETE GENERAL FUND BALANCE 

DESIGNATIONS:   
 

RESOLUTION 2023-020 
 

REMOVING CERTAIN OBSOLETE GENERAL FUND BALANCE 
DESIGNATIONS 

 
 WHEREAS, during its review and reconciliation of older financial records and accounts, 
management has identified several separate North Carolina Capital Management Trust 
(NCCMT) bank accounts holding certain county funds which were opened long ago to 
apparently hold their respective funds in those separate accounts for certain projects/purposes 
previously designated by the Board including the following specific accounts: 

i. Public Building Capital Reserve   (Opened June 1990) 
ii. Recreation Land Reserve    (Opened July 1990)  
iii. Water Works Debt Service Reserve  (Opened June 1991) 
iv. Economic Development Reserve  (Opened June 2001) 

 WHEREAS, management discussed its research of, and known history about these 
accounts with the Board at its FY24 Budget Planning Workshop in January of 2023, and 
recommended that due to the mostly obsolete purpose of these separate accounts, that they be 
closed and the funds transferred to and consolidated with the other main accounts of the county 
to the fullest extent possible, in order to greatly reduce and simplify the administrative burden 
associated with otherwise having to continue tracking, reconciling, booking interest, and auditing 
each of these four separate bank accounts (in addition to the other ten separate bank accounts the 
county currently maintains) on a monthly, quarterly, and annual basis as applicable; and 
   
 WHEREAS, staff was directed to prepare a resolution for the Board of Commissioners 
to authorize such closure and consolidation subject to certain restrictions on where the funding in 
each account would be transferred. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, 
 

1. The Public Building Capital Reserve Account which had a balance of $118,003.19 
earlier this year but continues to accrue interest, shall be closed.  The full account balance 
at the time of closure shall be undesignated for any specific purposes, and shall be 
transferred into the county’s primary NCCMT account already holding other unrestricted 
general fund balance monies.   
 

2. The Recreation Land Reserve Account which had a balance of $9,116.37 earlier this 
year but continues to accrue interest, shall be closed.  The full account balance at the time 



DRAFT  

 

of closure shall initially be transferred into the county’s primary NCCMT and considered 
undesignated fund balance.   

 
a. Thereafter, staff shall prepare a budget amendment for the Board to approve the 

transfer of the same full amount from its General Fund to its Special Projects & 
Grants (Fund 58) in order to hold and budget the transferred funds together with 
other funding already held there to be used in the future for PARTF/recreational 
grant purposes. 

 
3. The Water Works Debt Service Reserve Account which had a balance of 

approximately $73,577.98 earlier this year but continues to accrue interest, shall be 
closed.  The full account balance at the time of closure shall be undesignated for any 
specific purposes, and shall be transferred into the county’s primary water account 
currently held at Southern Bank.  
 

4. The Economic Development Reserve Account which had a balance of approximately 
$209,964.46 earlier this year but continues to accrue interest, shall be closed.  The full 
account balance at the time of closure shall be undesignated for any specific purposes, 
and shall be considered part of the General Fund’s unrestricted fund balance, and shall be 
transferred into the county’s primary NCCMT account already holding other unrestricted 
general fund balance monies. 
 

5. The County Manager and Finance Officer are hereby authorized to execute any and all 
instruments deemed reasonably necessary to give effect to this Resolution and to 
facilitate the closing and transferring of the foregoing funds as directed herein by the 
Board. 

 
Adopted this the 5th day of June 2023. 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________                     (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Board 

 
 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve RESO 2023-020 Removing Certain 

Obsolete General Fund Balance Designations Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   

 
Commissioner Johnson said she is working on scrap tire material. 
 
Commissioner Spruill said he attended County Advocacy Days in May in Raleigh.  It was 
good to meet other County Commissioners and legislators.  The groundbreaking event last 
week was an important event for the community.  He stated he appreciated all the work that 
went into making the Bear Festival a success. 
 
Commissioner Phelps said regarding Phase II of the school, he would like to take out the 
demolition of Creswell Schools and be able to sell the schools and use those funds in the 
new school (or maybe pay back our loan).  Commissioner Johnson asked if this is a decision 
this Board can make.  Mr. Potter said the Board can make the motion to pull the demo from 
the Phase II agreement. Commissioner Phelps made a motion to pull the demolition of 
the Creswell Schools from Phase II of the agreement.   Commissioner Spruill 
seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Keyes stated she taught an EM class on May 31 to NCACC Commissioners. 
On June 7 she went to the Early College High School.  She also worked in the hospitality 
tent of the Bear Festival, and it was a wonderful event. 
 
Chair Walker said he was glad to see things being done at the Animal Shelter.  He stated he 
also attended the groundbreaking for the new WCS school. 
 
The Clerk asked the Commissioners if they would consider cancelling the July 3, 2023, 
Board Meeting. Commissioner Johnson made a motion to cancel the July 3, 2023, 
Board of Commissioners Meeting.  Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Mr. Potter thanked the Board for their time spent on the budget and for approving it tonight. 
It makes it easier for Finance to conduct the end-of-year activities when it is approved early 
in June.  He has various meetings coming up: AVCON building architect/WCS PreK 
steering committee/Airport Advisory Committee. 

 
 Commissioner Keyes made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 
§143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel).  Commissioner 
Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 

Back in Open Session, with no further business to discuss, Commissioner Spruill made 
a motion to adjourn.  Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
             Julius Walker, Jr.          Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

          Chair              Clerk to the Board 
 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda August 7, 2023
	8-7-2023 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Tax Refunds, Release & Insolvents July 2023
	FY24 Pay Tables Schedule eff 7.16.23 draft
	ACM Position Description 20230621
	TRAINING & EXPERIENCE

	Deputy Tax Administrator Position Description and Advertisement 20230621 wo ad
	TRAINING & EXPERIENCE

	Tax Land Records Coordinator Position Description and Advertisement 20230621 wo ad
	TRAINING & EXPERIENCE

	BOCC Memo re 205 E Main St. Probation Office Space for 20230802 mtg w attach
	ADPCD00.tmp
	STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA


	7-31-23 Finance Report
	RESO 2023-020 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $970,200
	RESO 2023-021 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $5,472,000
	Order to Collect FY 23-24
	Retention Schedule Approval 2023
	2023 Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement with Emergency Management
	8-7-2023 Item 2 (public forum)
	8-7-2023 Item 3 Tax Collector's Annual Settlement Report
	Tax Collector Settlement 080723
	8-7-2023 Item 4 Late Application for Disabled Vet Exemption
	Respass James Anthony Late DV Application 072823
	Respass_ James Anthony DV Application
	8-7-2023 Item 5 Department Information Update
	Presentation PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS
	Slide 1: PLANNING  AND  INSPECTIONS
	Slide 2: Washington County Planning Board
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16: ELECTRICAL
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22
	Slide 23
	Slide 24
	Slide 25
	Slide 26
	Slide 27
	Slide 28
	Slide 29
	Slide 30
	Slide 31
	Slide 32
	Slide 33
	Slide 34
	Slide 35
	Slide 36
	Slide 37
	Slide 38

	pl bd rules-signed-pittman pres
	wc510. pittman-pres
	510 entire county - pittman pres
	8-7-2023 Item 6 Quasi-Judicial Hearing-Special Use Permit--Cell Tower
	Instructions - Special Use Permit Quasi Judicial Hearing Procedure Tillman Infrastructure for 20230728
	Zoning Ord--Article 5 Special Use Permits
	Special Use Permit- Package from Planning Board-Cell Tower--Tillman
	8-7-2023 Item 7 Boards & Committees
	8-7-2023 Item 8 Finance Officer's Report
	Budget Transfers 2023
	Budget Transfers 2024
	Budget Amendments 2024
	8-7-2023 Item 9 Other Items
	ABC budget FY 2024
	Scan2023-06-23_181404_000.pdf
	Scan2023-06-23_181404_001.pdf
	Scan2023-06-23_181404_002.pdf
	Scan2023-06-23_181404_003.pdf
	Scan2023-06-23_181404_004.pdf

	Reports for 8-7-2023 BoC Meeting
	Stat Report Cover Sheet
	FY22-23 Statisitc Report
	Detention
	EMS
	Planning & Zoning
	Senior Center
	 Tax
	Sheriffs Office
	Utilities
	Landfill

	8-7-2023 Item 10 Closed Session
	6-5-2023 edited minutes jjb



